Board Agenda for Annual Meeting

January 8, 2026




ANNUAL BOARD MEETING
I ‘ I — ' Travis County Facilities Corporation

Travis County Facilities Corporation

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, Texas 78752

AGENDA

January 8, 2026

9:30 A.M.

The Board of Directors will meet at 502 E. Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B, Austin, Texas 78752, and via
Zoom via the link provided below.

https://Hatctx.com/zoom

I CALLTO ORDER/ ROLL CALL / CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM

MISSION STATEMENT: To create safe, affordable, and livable housing options that empower individuals
and families to thrive, fostering strong, inclusive communities for generations to come.

1. PUBLIC FORUM/ CITIZEN COMMUNICATION

Anyone desiring to discuss or comment on items directly related to the TCFC is always
welcome.

Ifthe item is deemed related to an Agenda item at the current meeting, the presiding officer will
inform the guest that pending action(s) remains.

Speakers must sign in before the start of the Board Meeting by emailing Arlenne Lozano at
Arlenne.Lozano@traviscountytx.gov.

Each speaker is allotted a maximum of three minutes for their comments.

In cases where multiple speakers represent the same organization, the primary speaker is
permitted three minutes, while subsequent speakers are limited to one minute each.

The total speaking time for all representatives from the same organization is capped at ten
minutes.

1. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of the Minutes from the December 4, 2025, Regular Meeting
b. Approval of the Minutes from the December 11, 2025, Special Meeting
Iv. ACTION ITEMS

a. Ratification of previously To Ratify Resolution No. TCFC-2025-18 for
considered resolution No. the preserve at Mason Creek to be located
TCFC-2025-18 AT APPROXIMATELY SOUTH OF

HORSESHOE DRIVE AND EAST OF CIRCLE
DIAMOND LANE in Leander, WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, including the execution
of alldocumentation necessary to carry

Enhance Housing Quality and Management Excellence | Maximize Resident Self-Sufficiency and Holistic Support | Visibility, Communication, and Community
Engagement | Achieve Organizational Stability and Operational Efficiency | Drive Sustainable Growth and Resource Diversification

Annual Board Meeting | January 8, 2026


https://hatctx.com/zoom
mailto:Arlenne.Lozano@traviscountytx.gov

ANNUAL BOARD MEETING
I ‘ I — ‘ Travis County Facilities Corporation
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B

Travis County Facilities Corporation i
Austin, Texas 78752

out the transaction; authorizing the
purchase of the land for the project and
authorizing the Travis County Facilities
Corporation to serve as the general
contractor; and other matters in
connection therewith

b. Resolution No. TCFC-2026-01 To Direct Staff to Explore Ways to Enhance
Tenant Protections, Ensure Housing
Stability, and Prevent Evictions

V. DISCUSSION ITEMS
= Election of Officers (President and Vice President)
VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
= The Travis County Facilities Corporation will convene into executive session pursuant to Texas
Government Code Sections 551.072 (Real Property) and 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)
to discuss and deliberate the acquisition of land parcels for the purpose of affordable housing,
community facilities, or other public purposes.
o Briefing regarding the purchase of real property for affordable housing, community
facilities, or other public purposes.
o Reconvene into an open session and take action as necessary, as discussed in
Executive Session.

VII. ADJOURNMENT

Dl 8. Mo

Patrick Howard, Secretary
Travis County Facilities Corporation

Enhance Housing Quality and Management Excellence | Maximize Resident Self-Sufficiency and Holistic Support | Visibility, Communication, and Community
Engagement | Achieve Organizational Stability and Operational Efficiency | Drive Sustainable Growth and Resource Diversification

Annual Board Meeting | January 8, 2026



. CALLTO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRMATION OF
010002001




II. PUBLIC FORUM / CITIZEN COMMUNICATION




III. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of the Minutes of the December 4, 2025,
Regular Meeting

b. Approval of the Minutes of the December 11, 2025,
Special Meeting




Travis County Facilities Corporation
I ‘ I — ‘ 502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B

Travis County Facilities Corporation

Austin, TX 78752

MINUTES

Travis County Facilities Corporation
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting
502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, TX 78752

December 4, 2025
9:30 A.M.

The Travis County Facilities Corporation (TCFC) held a Regular Board of Directors meeting on December 4, 2025, at
502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B, Austin, Texas 78752, and via the Zoom link provided below.

https://Hatctx.com/zoom

CALLTO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM
a. President Sharal Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 10:54 A.M.
b. Executive Assistant Arlenne Lozano conducted a Roll Call of Directors.
i. President Sharal Brown: Present
ii. Vice President Judy Flores: Present
iii. Director Laura Goettsche: Present
iv. Director Wilmer Roberts: Present
v. DirectorJimmy Paver: Present
c. CEO/Executive Director Patrick B. Howard confirmed a quorum.
d. Staffin attendance: CEO/Executive Director Patrick B. Howard; Deputy Director/COQO Dora Thomas;
Director of Finance & Administration Subra Narayanaiyer; and Executive Assistant Arlenne Lozano
e. Others in attendance: Bracewell LLP Attorney Summer Greathouse; Cascade Homes President
Brian Crittendon; StoneHawk Capital Manager Jordon Cox; and IT Consultant Kevin Bryniak
PUBLIC FORUM/ CITIZEN COMMUNICATION
a. N/A
CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of Minutes from the October 2, 2025, Regular Meeting
i. Director Goettsche made a motion for approval.
ii. Director Roberts seconded the motion.
iii. Motion passed unanimously.
DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Preserve at Mason Creek Presentation
i. Cascade Homes President Brian Crittendon gave a presentation on Preserve at Mason Creek, a
64 three- and four-bedroom, detached single-family home rental community development
located in Leander, TX. It has approved developments and is ready to begin construction. The
city of Leander has agreed to enter a “PILOT” that would provide a property tax abatement
ending 10 years after construction to help facilitate this development.
b. UT Law School Tech Report
i. CEO/Executive Director Howard provided an overview of the reports and findings.

Regular Board Meeting | December 4, 2025



https://hatctx.com/zoom

Travis County Facilities Corporation
I ‘ I — ‘ 502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, TX 78752

Travis County Facilities Corporation

ii. The Board requested that HATC staff come up with a statement and possible resolution.
c. Policy Statements on Affordable Housing
i. CEO/Executive Director Howard cited that County Commissioner Anne Howard has asked
twice about Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) and funding.
e Vice President Flores suggested that Austin Public Facilities Corporation (PFC)
should assist with funds.
e Director Goettsche proposed that a needs and resource assessment be conducted.
d. Finance Report for Period Ending in 10/31/2025
V. ACTION ITEMS

a. Resolution No. TCFC-2025-17: To Approve Resolution Inducing the Wagner Apartments in
Partnership with StoneHawk Capital Partners or an Affiliate Thereof to be Located Approximately 1.5
Miles West of the Intersection of Dee Gabriel Road and SH 183; and Authorizing the Negotiation and
Execution of a Term Sheet; and Other Matters In Connection Therewith

i. CEO/Executive Director Patrick B. Howard requested to jump to Resolution No. TCFC-2025-17,
to which StoneHawk Capital Manager Jordon Cox provided the Board with a synopsis of the
Wagner project. Manager Cox noted that the Wagner is a 342-unit development to be located in
southeast Austin, minutes from the Tesla gigafactory and Austin Bergstrom airport with a
construction start date of Q1 2026 and a stabilization date of Q3 2028.

1. Director Goettsche made a motion for approval.
2. Director Roberts seconded the motion
3. Motion passed unanimously.

b. Resolution No. TCFC-2025-15: To Approve this Resolution Authorizing Amendments to the
Developments Agreements and Other Project Documents for the At 6311 Apartments Transaction,
and Other Matters in Connection Therewith

1. Director Paver made a motion for approval.
2. Vice President Flores seconded the motion
3. Motion passed unanimously.

c. Resolution No. TCFC-2025-16: To Approve the Restated Standard Terms for PFC Transactions; and
Other Matters in Connection Therewith

i. The former language states “sales commission- 15% of return after debt, equity and preferred
return are repaid on 1% capital event, then 2% of gross on all subsequent sales,” while the
updated language states, “sales commission- upon first capital event, the greater of 15% of
return after debt, equity, and preferred return are repaid or 2% of gross sale proceeds. All
subsequent sale events, 2% of gross sale proceeds.”

1. Vice President Flores made a motion for approval.
2. Director Roberts seconded the motion
3. Motion passed unanimously.

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. N/A
VII. ADJOURNMENT
i. Vice President Flores made a motion for approval.
ii. Director Roberts seconded the motion.
iii. Motion passed unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 11:54 A.M.

Regular Board Meeting | December 4, 2025



TCI-C

Travis County Facilities Corporation

Travis County Facilities Corporation
502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, TX 78752

AN .

Patrick B. Howard, Secretary
Travis County Facilities Corporation

Regular Board Meeting | December 4, 2025



Travis County Facilities Corporation
I ‘ I — ‘ 502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, TX 78752

Travis County Facilities Corporation

Travis County Facilities Corporation
Board of Directors
Special Meeting
502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, TX 78752

December 11, 2025
9:30 A.M.

MINUTES

The Travis County Facilities Corporation (TCFC) held a Special Board of Directors meeting on December 11, 2025,
at 502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B, Austin, Texas 78752, and via the Zoom link provided below.

https://Hatctx.com/zoom

I CALLTO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM
a. President Sharal Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 9:35 A.M.
b. Executive Assistant to the CEO, Arlenne Lozano conducted a Roll Call of Directors.
i. President Sharal Brown: Present
ii. Vice President Judy Flores: Absent
iii. Director Laura Goettsche: Present
iv. Director Wilmer Roberts: Present
v. DirectorJimmy Paver: Absent
c. CEO/Executive Director Patrick B. Howard confirmed a quorum.
d. Staff in attendance: CEO/Executive Director Patrick B. Howard; and Executive Assistant Arlenne
Lozano.
e. Others in attendance: Bracewell LLP Attorney Summer Greathouse (virtual); and Cascade Homes
President Brian Crittendon (virtual)
IL. PUBLIC FORUM / CITIZEN COMMUNICATION
a. N/A
I11. ACTION ITEMS
a. Resolution No. TCFC-2025-18: Consideration and possible action regarding a resolution
approving the transaction for the preserve at Mason Creek to be located AT APPROXIMATELY
SOUTH OF HORSESHOE DRIVE AND EAST OF CIRCLE DIAMOND LANE in Leander,
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, including the execution of all documentation necessary to
carry out the transaction; authorizing the purchase of the land for the project and authorizing
the Travis County Facilities Corporation to serve as the general contractor; and other matters in
connection therewith.
i. Director Goettsche made a motion for approval.
ii. Director Roberts seconded the motion.
iii. Motion passed unanimously.

V. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Enhance Housing Quality and Management Excellence | Maximize Resident Self-Sufficiency and Holistic Support | Visibility, Communication, and Community
Engagement | Achieve Organizational Stability and Operational Efficiency | Drive Sustainable Growth and Resource Diversification

Special Board Meeting | December 11, 2025


https://hatctx.com/zoom

TCFC

Travis County Facilities Corporation

Travis County Facilities Corporation
502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, TX 78752

N/A
V. ADJOURNMENT

i. Director Roberts made a motion for approval.

ii. Director Goettsche seconded the motion.
iii. Motion passed unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:40 A.M.

Ol 8. Mo

Patrick B. Howard, Secretary
Travis County Facilities Corporation

Enhance Housing Quality and Management Excellence | Maximize Resident Self-Sufficiency and Holistic Support | Visibility, Communication, and Community
Engagement | Achieve Organizational Stability and Operational Efficiency | Drive Sustainable Growth and Resource Diversification

Special Board Meeting | December 11, 2025



IV. ACTION ITEMS
a. Ratification of previously considered
resolution No. TCFC-2025-18: To Ratify
Resolution No.
TCFC-2025-18 for the preserve at Mason Creek
to be located AT APPROXIMATELY SOUTH OF

HORSESHOE DRIVE AND EAST OF CIRCLE
DIAMOND LANE in Leander, WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, including the execution of all
documentation necessary to carry out the
transaction; authorizing the purchase of the
land for the project and authorizing the Travis
County Facilities Corporation to serve as the
general contractor; and other matters in
connection therewith




REGULAR BOARD MEETING
I ( I s < Travis County Facilities Corporation
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B

Travis County Facilities Corporation .
Austin, Texas 78752

Action Item a
January 8, 2026
Subject: Ratification of previously considered Resolution No. TCFC-2025-18.

Background information:

At its December 11, 2025, Special Meeting, the Board considered and approved the referenced resolution. In
discussions with legal counsel regarding the date/time stamp associated with the posting of the Agenda item and
the fact that receipt of confirmation of posting did not show the preceding 72-hour notice requirement under the
Texas Open Meetings Act, all parties wanted to take some appropriate action.

To ensure full compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act and to adhere to all applicable laws and procedural
requirements, staff are bringing the resolution back to the Board for ratification. This action is intended to reaffirm
the Board’s original approval while ensuring that the resolution is properly noticed and adopted in accordance with
statutory requirements.

Ratifying the resolution at this meeting reflects the Authority’s commitment to transparency, good governance, and
strict adherence to all legal and regulatory guidelines.

Recommended Action:

For discussion/information only. No action needed.
Alternate Option:

N/A

Fiscal Impact:

N/A

Attachments:

N/A

Prepared and approved by:

Dl 8. Mot

Patrick B. Howard, CEO/Executive Director

Annual Board Meeting | January 8, 2026



TCI-C

Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Action ltem a
January 8, 2026

Resolution No. TCFC-2026-01: To Direct Staff to explore ways to enhance tenant
protections, ensure housing stability, and prevent evictions.

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of Travis County and its affiliate, Travis County Facilities
Corporation, are committed to ensuring safe, decent, affordable, and equitable housing for
all residents; and

WHEREAS, tenants face challenges, including excessive fees, unfair eviction practices, and
a lack of clear information, which leads to instability and housing insecurity; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the importance of community input and best practices in
developing effective tenant-focused policies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Board of Directors of TCFC hereby:
1. Approves Resolution No. TCFC-2026-01.
2. Authorizes the CEO / Executive Director to execute all necessary documents and

extensions.

Passed and Approved the 8" of January 2026.

Sharal Brown, President, Board of Directors

Attested and approved as to form:

Patrick B. Howard, CEO / Executive Director

January 8, 2026



IV. ACTION ITEM

b. Resolution No. TCFC-2026-01




ADDITIONAL LANDLORD TERMS AND CONDITIONS REGARDING TENANT
PROTECTIONS AND SCREENING (“TENANT PROTECTION ADDENDUM”)

1. DEFINITIONS
For the purposes of this Exhibit “E-17, the terms below will be defined as follows:

A. “Director” means the Executive Director of the Harris County Community Services
Department;

B. “Landlord” means [LANDLORDY] the owner of the property or an agent of the Owner
including but not limited to, the company or organization contracted to serve as the
property manager for the Property known as the [NAME] located at [ADDRESS], as
well as lessor, or sublessor of a dwelling. For all purposes in this Exhibit, any actions,
statements or agreements reached by any party comprising the “Landlord” with the
Tenant will be deemed as final and binding to all parties comprising the Landlord;

C. “Property” means the residential building in which the tenant resides that is owned by the
Landlord.

D. “Tenant” means a person who is authorized by a lease to the occupied dwelling unit, and
as defined in Chapter 92, Subchapter A (6) of the State of Texas Property Code.

E. “Agreement” means the agreement that sets the terms under which Harris County
will provide Owner with assistance, including but not limited to: loans, grants, funds,
land, or other items of value.

F. “Payment Plan” refers to an arrangement reached between the Landlord and Tenant that
allows the Tenant the opportunity to avoid further accruement of arrears; or Rent that is
owed in exchange for Tenant’s adherence to a schedule of repayment meant to either
bring Tenant current on Rent or pay Landlord an agreed sum which Landlord will accept
as full satisfaction for any current Rent delinquencies. Landlord agrees to use best efforts
to work with Tenant for at least the sixty (60) day period following the month that the
Tenant fell behind on its Rent. Payment Plan must bring Tenant current on Rent within a
six (6) month period beginning the date the Payment Plan is entered into, and Landlord is
required to maintain documentation of such proposed payment, including if a Tenant
decides to decline a Payment Plan. Once the agreed-upon amounts are paid, delinquent
payments shall be expunged from Tenant’s account.

G. “Rent” means the regular monthly recurring charges Tenant is contractually obligated to
pay the Landlord as a condition of being allowed to occupy a unit in the Property per
lease agreement. Rent to Landlord includes all housing services, maintenance, utilities
and appliances to be provided and paid by the Landlord in accordance with the lease.

H. “Notice to Vacate” means document delivered by Landlord to Tenant notifying the
Tenant that the Tenant has defaulted on the obligations of Tenant’s lease and without
steps taken to remedy, will result in actions taken by Landlord including filing for

1



eviction.

I. “Right of First Refusal” means a displaced Tenant who previously occupied a particular
unit in a Property must be the first person given the option to reside in the same or
similar unit.

J. “The Lookback Period” is a period of time during which records of criminal activity
are searchable, starting from the date of the conviction. Lookback Periods may be
based on type of conviction and chance of recidivism.

K. “Affordability Period” means the length of time a Landlord must impose the rent or
occupancy income restrictions on the units assisted by Harris County as established in
the Agreement. Landlord is bound by the Tenant Protection Addendum for the duration
of the Affordability Period.

L. “Eviction” means a forcible entry and detainer action as defined in Chapter 24 of the
Texas Property Code or any other legal action filed by a landlord to obtain possession
of Tenant’s unit.

2. TERMINATION OF TENANCY

A. Owner may not terminate the tenancy or refuse to renew the lease of a Tenant except for:
(1) serious or repeated violations of the terms and conditions of the lease agreement
(e.g., failure to pay rent, or unlawful activity that threatens the health, safety, or right
to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents; willful and repeated
destruction of rental property or property of other residents; or use of the unit for
unlawful purposes);

(2) completion of tenancy period for transitional housing in which case at least 30
days before the end of the transitional housing tenancy period, the Landlord is
required to provide the Tenant with written notice that the tenancy period is ending; or
(3) the temporary or permanent uninhabitability of the Property justifying relocation

of all or some of the Property’s tenants (except where such uninhabitability is
caused by the deferred maintenance, actions or inactions of the
Landlord).Termination on this ground shall trigger either the Relocation
provisions in Section 9 or grounds for termination of the lease, except in cases
where the property becomes uninhabitable due to the Tenant’s intentional actions.

B. If an eviction is initiated, the Landlord agrees to rely only upon those grounds cited in the
termination notice Section 3.

C. Landlord hereby agrees to apply all partial and/or full payments made by Tenant or on
behalf of Tenant to Rent first to reduce the risk of eviction for nonpayment of rent.

D. Should Tenant become current on Rent prior to the issuance of a judgment for eviction
due to nonpayment of Rent, Landlord agrees to dismiss the eviction proceeding with
prejudice.



E. Landlord may not evict Tenant for nonpayment of Rent after a Payment Plan has
been entered into, unless Tenant subsequently violates the Payment Plan.

F. In the event of an eviction being filed against Tenant, Landlord will provide contact
information of government-funded legal aid agencies or other legal representation
organizations the Tenant may contact to request assistance in either understanding or
representing them in the eviction process. Landlord agrees to work with the legal
representative, if one is obtained, to reach an agreement and dismiss the eviction
proceeding or take other measures to prevent the court from issuing a judgment in the
eviction proceeding.

G. Once a lease is terminated, Landlord may not take, hold, or sell personal property of
the Tenant, or any occupant of the Tenant’s dwelling, without written notice to the
Tenant and a court decision on the rights of the parties except when the property
remains in the unit after the Tenant has moved out of the unit and the property is
disposed of in accordance with State law.

3. NOTICES REGARDING TERMINATION OF TENANCY

A. Thirty-Day Notice. To terminate or not renew the lease, Landlord shall serve written
notice upon the Tenant specifying the grounds for the termination or nonrenewal at least
thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal, unless the
termination is based on serious violent criminal activity that poses an immediate threat to
the safety of staff or other residents. The notice to terminate or nonrenewal shall be served
on the Tenant by either:

(1) both first class mail and either certified or registered mail; or
(2) by personal delivery to the Tenant or a household member sixteen (16) years or
older.

B. Opportunity to Discuss. The written notice shall also inform Tenant of the right to discuss
with the Landlord the proposed termination or non-renewal of tenancy. The notice must
give the Tenant at least ten (10) business days from the date of the notice to request a
meeting with the Landlord. The Tenant may provide written notice of a request to meet
with a Landlord through mail, text message, e-mail, or any other written communication
that the Landlord uses for correspondence with Tenant. If the Tenant makes a timely
request, the Landlord agrees to meet with the Tenant and to discuss the proposed
termination or nonrenewal.

C. Opportunity to Cure Lease Violations. For termination or nonrenewal of tenancy due
exclusively to serious or repeated lease violations, excluding drug activity or other
serious criminal activity, the written notice shall also inform Tenant of the opportunity to
cure any alleged violation of the lease agreement before the effective date of the
termination or nonrenewal in the Notice as required by Section 3(A).

D. Three-Day Notice. If the dispute is not resolved and the Tenant does not vacate the
premises by the effective date of the termination as set forth in the notice of lease
termination required by Section 3(A), Landlord shall give the Tenant at least three (3)

3



days written notice to vacate the premises. If the Tenant does not vacate the premises by
the end of the third day, Landlord may then proceed to obtain possession by a forcible
entry and detainer lawsuit in the appropriate Justice of the Peace court.

4. PUBLIC ASSISTANCE

A. Landlord will provide information about local governmental or other organizations that
Tenant may contact to request assistance in either paying past-due Rent or helping Tenant
meet the obligations of their Payment Plan. Landlord shall provide a list of resources
attached to lease agreement and other forms of communication including but not limited
to SMS text, e-mail, door flyers, etc. Landlord also agrees to display the above-mentioned
list prominently on both the Property’s website and at the rental office on-site.

B. Landlord agrees to accept all forms of lawful financial assistance paid on behalf of Tenant,
including but not limited to publicly administered rent relief program, non-profit rental
assistance, church or charity-based rental assistance received by Tenant, provided that the
assistance is received within sixty (60) days of a governmental entity or organization’s
written commitment to make Rent payments on behalf of tenant.

Landlord agrees to adhere to rules and regulations of a program and participate as
necessary for Tenant’s participation in any assistance program.

C. If Tenant has defaulted on Rent and applies for rental assistance, the Landlord will not
pursue enforcement of any judgements, writs of possession or other litigation based on
nonpayment of rent until a final decision is made whether the Tenant is eligible or
selected for assistance under the applicable program.

D. Landlord shall rescind or cancel, within five (5) business days of the Landlord’s receipt of
a payment of financial assistance, any prior enforcement mechanism applicable to the
Property based solely upon nonpayment for the month(s) to which the assistance applies.
Landlord retains the right to pursue eviction if a Tenant who received rental assistance
also engages in conduct constituting a non-monetary default of Tenant’s lease.

E. If Landlord receives payments for Rent on behalf of the Tenant from a governmental,
church, or charitable organization, the Tenant is not responsible for paying the portion of
Rent to owner covered by the governmental, church, or charitable organization under the
contract between the Landlord and the organization, if such a contract exists. A
governmental, church, or charitable organization’s failure to make the Rent payment to
the Landlord will not constitute a default or violation of the lease by the Tenant, and the
non-payment will not constitute grounds for eviction or other collection efforts. In such
event, Landlord will work with the Tenant, governmental, church, or charitable
organization to the furthest extent possible in an attempt to resolve the interruption in
Rent payments.

5. CONTACT WITH TENANT REPRESENTATIVE FOR TENANTS

A. If Tenant has an attorney on record with the court and/or is under a guardianship or other
form of community supervision and support, Landlord agrees to contact the appropriate

4



representative, attorney or case worker regarding termination of tenancy or other
disciplinary actions against the Tenant.

6. TENANT SCREENING AND ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

A.

Application of Federal Laws. Landlord agrees to follow all Fair Housing Act provisions,
including the Americans with Disabilities Act, and other federal, state or local laws
prohibiting certain forms of discrimination. Landlord will be in compliance with
protections covered under the Violence Against Women Act.

. Veterans. Landlord shall not engage in discrimination based on veteran status. Landlord

may adopt a veteran preference or any other measure that encourages veterans to take up
residence at the Property.

Source of Income. Landlord shall not engage in discrimination based on a Tenant or
prospective Tenant’s current or prospective source of income. All forms of government-
funded housing assistance (including but not limited to Housing Choice Vouchers and
Tenant Protection VVouchers) must be accepted as valid.

Selection Procedures. Landlord shall maintain written Tenant selection policies and
procedures. Landlord will make the policy readily available through means that include
but are not limited to: (a) prominently posting the policy in the Property rental office and
on the Property website; and (b) providing paper and electronic copies of the policy upon
request.

If Harris County adopts a Tenant screening policy that covers the Property, Landlord must
follow the adopted policy for the remainder of the Affordability Period. Harris County
will provide Landlord with written notice and at least sixty (60) days to achieve
compliance per Section 14(C).

Inclusion of Lookback Periods. Landlord’s selection policy shall set Lookback Periods for
various criminal offenses. Each Lookback Period shall be limited to a reasonable duration.
In no discretionary situation should a criminal offense’s Lookback Period extend more
than seven (7) years from the date of prospective Tenant’s application.

Consideration of Eviction. Landlord agrees that a prospective Tenant may not be denied
an application or residency based on eviction history if: (a) eviction proceedings resulted
in a dismissal, nonsuit or judgment for the prospective Tenant; (b) eviction proceedings
have been sealed or made confidential; or (c) judgment against the prospective Tenant
was issued more than three (3) years before the application.

Consideration of Credit History. Landlord agrees that a prospective Tenant may not be
denied application or residence based on credit history, provided that the prospective
Tenant can show record of consistent and timely Rent payments over the last twelve (12)
months.

Consideration of Criminal Record. Landlord agrees that a prospective Tenant may not be

5



denied application or residence based on (a) arrests that have not resulted in conviction;
(b) convictions that occurred outside of the Lookback Period; or (c) convictions for
controlled substance offenses other than drug manufacturing or distribution. Landlord
agrees to only consider convictions that occurred during the Lookback Period as part of
the holistic process described below.

a. Inscreening prospective Tenants, Landlord may consider convictions that
occurred during the Lookback Period only as part of an individual review process
that requires the Landlord to weigh the following factors:

i. age at time of offense;
ii. how long since offense was committed;
ili. community ties and support;
Iv. references and supporting recommendations;
v. rehabilitation efforts;
vi. further explanation of the offense; and
vii. requests for reasonable accommodation.

b. In determining eligibility after the individual review process described in (a),
Landlord may only deny a prospective Tenant’s application if Landlord finds
reliable evidence that the denial will assist in protecting resident safety or

property.

I. Landlord shall retain records of all denials with reasoning and make such records
available to Harris County for audit in accordance with the record retention and audit
provisions included in the Agreement.

8. PROPERTY CONDITION

A. All residential rental units within the Property must meet minimum health and safety
standards outlined in the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s Housing Quality Standard, Harris County Minimum Property Standards,
as well as basic utilities and facilities, ventilation and heating, safety from fire, and safe
and sanitary maintenance.

B. Units must also maintain working amenities including but not limited to water heating
facilities, cooling facilities (where available), water and sewer lines, plumbing and
electrical fixtures, lighted common halls and stairways, and, if provided, cooking
equipment.

C. At least once every twelve (12) month period, Landlord will permit and cooperate with
an on-site Housing Quality Standards inspection of the Property by representatives or
contractors for the Harris County Community Services Department. In addition,
Landlord will provide copies of any and all inspection reports conducted by any other
government entity to Harris County Community Services Department or Tenant within
ten (10) business days.

D. Landlord is to receive and process Tenant repair requests. Repair requests may be written
or submitted on-line via computer based systems. All repair requests made by Tenants

6



will be made available to Harris County Community Services Department upon request.
Landlord will be deemed to have knowledge of any condition on or affecting the
Property upon such request being submitted by Tenant(s).

E. If Landlord knows or should know of any hazardous condition on or affecting the
Property, Landlord agrees to remediate the same within a reasonable period of time
following the date that the Landlord becomes aware of the condition. There is a
rebuttable presumption that seven (7) days is a reasonable period of time. To rebut that
presumption, the date on which the Landlord received the Tenant's notice, the severity
and nature of the condition, and the reasonable availability of materials and labor and
of utilities from a utility company must be considered.

F. Landlord agrees to repair and maintain all elements of the Property, even if the same is
due to an act or omission of Tenant. However, Landlord, following the completion of
such repair, retains all rights to retain portion of a Tenant’s security deposit (if any)
and/or pursue collection of such amount against Tenant through the judicial system.

G. Landlord agrees that any day in which the temperature goes above ninety (90)
degrees, air conditioning repair requests are emergencies. The cooling system
must be capable of delivering enough cool air to assure a healthy living
environment and a comfortable living condition.

9. TENANT RELOCATION

A. If a Tenant is required to move out of the Property, or Tenant’s individual unit, due to any
repair, replacement, renovation of the unit, Landlord will provide relocation assistance to
Tenant including but not limited to packing, moving, storage and seeking a replacement
unit as closely as possible mirroring Property and the living conditions (e.g. location, cost,
proximity to community resources, etc.) the Tenant enjoyed while residing at the
Property. Upon the completion of such repairs or renovations which necessitated the
Tenant’s relocation, Landlord agrees to offer Tenant the Right of First Refusal to return to
their previous unit or a comparable unit within the Property. If the Tenant refuses to
return to the Property within thirty (30) business days from the date that the Right of First
Refusal was offered, then the Landlord is no longer responsible for providing relocation
assistance.

10. TENANT ACCESS TO INFORMATION

A. Landlord must provide Tenant with copies of Tenant Protection Addendum, and all other
legal documents, either (a) at the same time as Landlord provides a copy of the Lease to
the Tenant; or (b) within ten (10) days of the execution of this Agreement with Harris
County, if the Landlord and Tenant already have a lease agreement in place. The Tenant
Protection Addendum is in effect whether or not the parties have signed it.

B. The Tenant Protection Addendum must be provided in English, Spanish, Chinese, and
Vietnamese. Harris County Community Services Department will provide copies of the
Tenant Protection Addendum in the four languages listed.

7



11.

Landlord must attach the Tenant Protection Addendum to each and every lease
signed during the Affordability Period, including lease renewals.

Landlord will provide Tenant with copies of any documents signed by Tenant or
otherwise provided to Tenant as part of Landlord’s selection and on-boarding process.
Such requirements include lease agreements, rental applications, and Addendum or
supplemental document outlining the rights of Tenant.

Landlord agrees to adopt and implement the requirements identified in this document
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.

Landlord agrees to communicate the new tenant policies to the Tenants of Property
through direct notice to Tenants, presentation(s) at residents’ meetings, and through a
prominently displayed posting in the leasing office. Landlord also agrees to upon
request provide Tenant with additional copies of communications previously issued to
Tenant by Landlord or its representatives.

Landlord will attach a copy of the Tenant Protection Addendum to any petition
filed in an eviction proceeding against the Tenant.

RIGHT TO PARTICIPATE IN TENANT ORGANIZATION, PROTECTION
FROM RETALIATION, AND RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY

A

Landlord will permit each Tenant to conduct activities on the Property related to
or establishing a Tenant organization, including hosting a Tenant organizer at the
Property.

If the Tenant accesses common areas for tenant organization activities, the
Landlord may not impose fees or rules that are not applicable to a Tenant who
accesses a common area for activities that do not include tenant organization
activities.

Landlord will adhere to all policies and procedures applicable to the Property,
including the enforcement of restrictions on actions or failures of Tenant that
could trigger an eviction proceeding or other enforcement or collection efforts
by Landlord, in a uniform and non-discriminatory manner.

Landlord’s obligations pursuant to this Section also specifically extend to
prohibit the non-uniform or discriminatory treatment of Tenants who have
lodged or issued complaints against Landlord.

Landlord agrees that any waiver of a Tenant’s right to participate in a class or collective
action and any waiver of Tenant’s right to a trial by jury in any lease or other contractual
provision will have no effect.

F. Retaliatory behavior, as defined by Chapter 92 of the Texas Property Code, exhibited by

8



the Landlord is strictly prohibited and may result in the termination of this Agreement.
12. TENANT AS THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY

A. Landlord acknowledge the Tenant’s status as a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement,
including all rights of Tenant to pursue the enforcement of this Agreement and/or
introduce the same as a defense in any future litigation between Landlord and Tenant
regarding rental, lease disputes, possession of the subject premises, or other litigation
regarding the premise.

13. IMPLEMENTATION

A. Landlord will adopt and implement the policy within ten (10) days of the execution of
this Agreement with Harris County and will abide with the same throughout the
Affordability Period.

B. This policy is effective as of October 11, 2022, as approved by Harris County
Commissioners Court. Any affordable housing Property that receives funding
thereafter from the Harris County Community Services Department is subject to the
provisions and terms outlined in Tenant Protection Addendum and Agreement.

14. APPLICATION
A. The provisions of this Tenant Protection Addendum replace any conflicting provisions
contained in the lease agreement. To the extent any conflict exists between the lease
agreement and this Addendum, the provisions of this Addendum shall govern

B. This Addendum is deemed to have been made in compliance with all applicable Federal,
State and local laws, and if any section or part is not lawful, only that section or part shall
be void, and the balance of the Tenant Protection Addendum shall remain in full force and
effect. This Addendum should not be construed to restrict Landlords who participate in
federal housing assistance programs from abiding by program-specific requirements.

C. Landlord agrees to abide by all Harris County rules and regulations, as subject to change.
In the event that Harris County’s rules are revised, County will provide Landlord with
written notice at least sixty (60) days before the revision goes into effect.



SIGNATURES

BY:

Owner’s Representative Date

Property Name

Tenant Date

LANDLORD: THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE ATTACHED TO EACH AND EVERY
LEASE SIGNED DURING THE AFFORDABILITY PERIOD, INCLUDING LEASE
RENEWALS.

10



San Antonio Housing Trust Multifamily Program

Resident/Tenant Protection Policy
Effective March 30, 2021



For Resident Leases of San Antonio Housing Trust owned, partnered, or otherwise financially assisted
developments, the property owner/manager (the “Owner”) shall follow provisions in this policy and in
the Lease Addendum (Exhibit A). This lease addendum shall be incorporated into all tenant/resident
(“Tenant”) leases at the property and shall be executed by the property management or owner’s
designee and the Tenant. A copy of the lease and lease addendum shall be provided to the Tenant in
the language in which the lease was negotiated. The San Antonio Housing Trust entity shall ensure any
agreements with the Owner recognize that all tenants are protected as third-party beneficiaries of our
agreements. These policies have been negotiated by the San Antonio Housing Trust for the benefit of
the Tenants and are expected to be enforced by the Tenants directly against the Owner. The San
Antonio Housing Trust is not obligated to enforce these rights on behalf of any tenant but may enforce
against the Owner all resident policy and lease addendum provisions during the partnership or
affordability period.



Written Procedures

For San Antonio Housing Trust owned, partnered, or otherwise financially assisted developments, the
Owner must provide written Resident/Tenant selection policies and grievance procedures to San
Antonio Housing Trust. Written tenant/resident selection policies and grievance procedures shall
comply with applicable local, state, and federal laws. Resident/tenant selection policies and grievance
procedures shall be posted both online and in the leasing office or in another easily and publicly
accessible location. Resident/tenant selection policies and grievance procedures shall be available in
both English and in Spanish. These Resident/Tenant policies and grievance procedures must be
provided to Resident/Tenant applicants upon inquiry or request and shall be available to the public upon
request. San Antonio Housing Trust does not approve Resident/Tenant policies and grievance
procedures, however if SAHT staff becomes aware that a Resident/Tenant policies and grievance
procedure fails to comply with the SAHT Resident/Tenant Protection policy, SAHT may require a
modification by the Owner.

Source of Income Protection

Lease Applicants shall not be denied the ability to rent a residential unit based on the renter’s source of
income such as Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers, Section 8 Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing, other
rental vouchers, child support, spousal maintenance, social security and supplemental security income,
retirement income, emergency assistance or other public or legal forms of income.

Lease Applicant Denials
Eviction history shall not be considered in reviewing lease applications if eviction proceedings resulted in
a dismissal or judgment for the applicant. Further eviction history shall not be considered in reviewing
lease applications if:
e an eviction was settled with no judgement more than 12 months before a submitted Tenant
application; or
e judgement against an applicant was more than 36 months before application.

Non-payment of rent evictions from the date of the 1% City of San Antonio’s Declaration of Public Heath
regarding COVID-19 on March 13, 2020 through the end of the Declaration of Public Health Emergency
shall not be considered in reviewing lease applications.

Applicants shall not be denied solely based on insufficient rental history.

Applicants shall not be denied solely based on credit history.

No applicant can be denied because they are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking.

Owner is prohibited from requiring applicants participating in the Section 8, HOME TBRA, or other
federal rental assistance program to demonstrate a monthly income of more than 2.5 times the

household's share of the monthly rent or $2,500 annually.

Within seven days after the determination is made to deny an application, Owner must provide any



rejected or ineligible applicant that completed the application process a written notification of the
grounds for rejection. The written notification must include the specific reason for the denial and
reference the specific leasing criteria upon which the denial is based.

Owner must keep a log, subject to review by the San Antonio Housing Trust, of all denied applicants that
completed the application process to include basic household demographic and rental assistance
information, and the specific reason for which an applicant was denied.

Fair Housing Marketing

For San Antonio Housing Trust owned, partnered, or otherwise financially assisted multifamily
developments, the Owner must adopt procedures that affirmatively use fair housing marketing practices
in soliciting tenants in determining eligibility and concluding all transactions. Each property owner must
affirmatively further fair housing consistent with requirements set forth in 24 CFR 92.351(a)(2) including:

e Informing potential resident/tenants about Federal Fair Housing Laws including the use of the
Equal Housing Opportunity Logo or slogan in advertising for vacant units;

e Describing owner requirements and practices to carry out affirmative marketing procedures and
requirements (e.g., use of commercial media, use of community contacts, use of the Equal
Housing Opportunity logotype or slogan, and display of fair housing poster);

e Soliciting applications from persons in the housing market who are least likely to apply without
special outreach (e.g., through the use of community organizations, places of worship,
employment centers, fair housing groups, or housing counseling agencies);

e Providing listing of unit vacancies eligible for Section 8 program through GoSection8.com or
other such listing service; and

e Making available a description of actions taken to affirmatively market the program and further
fair housing for review by the San Antonio Housing Trust.

In addition, an owner shall state that they accept Section 8 vouchers on the project’s website. Owner
shall complete and maintain, the most recent HUD approved Affirmative Marketing Plan (Exhibit B)
upon financial closing of the project and make the plan available to the San Antonio Housing Trust within
5 business days of the request. If found to be non-compliant with this section, the SAHT may issue
corrective actions including requiring more extensive outreach efforts to achieve the occupancy goals or
other penalties/sanctions.

Non-Discrimination Ordinance
For San Antonio Housing Trust owned, partnered, or otherwise financially assisted developments, the
Owner must comply with the City of San Antonio’s Non-Discrimination Ordinance (Exhibit C).

Relocation Policy

The San Antonio Housing Trust shall adopt the City of San Antonio’s adopted definitions and criteria
regarding the Unform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and HUD
Handbook 1378 (Exhibit D) for projects seeking San Antonio Housing Trust ownership, partnership, or
otherwise financial assistance in acquiring, rehabilitating, demolishing, or developing multifamily
developments. For a property that is occupied at the time of the SAHT application, a tenant relocation
plan shall be submitted prior to final project approval. The tenant relocation plan has to follow the
Unform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and HUD Handbook
1378 (Exhibit D).



Attachment A

Lease Addendum



San Antonio Housing Trust Lease Addendum

Effective March 30, 2021

Tenant’s Right to Access Tenant Files
Owner agrees that a Tenant is entitled to review and be provided a copy of any of the rental application
and lease addendums, in addition to the lease, if requested within 3 business days of the request.

Owner agrees that a Tenant is entitled to review and be provided with a copy any of account of tenant
payments and charges.

Owner agrees that a Tenant is entitled to a written explanation of an Owner’s reasoning for terminating
or non-renewing a tenancy, except where the cause for terminating or non-renewal is due to violent
conduct, illegal drug activity, or other criminal activity that poses an immediate threat or imminent
danger to the safety of staff or other residents.

Owner agrees, upon request, to provide copies of documents related to the Owner’s reasoning for
terminating or non-renewal of tenancy. Owner may redact documents if Owner reasonably believes a
redaction is necessary to protect the health and safety of staff or other residents. Owner may not
redact any document signed by the Tenant.

Repairs and Remedies

In instances where Owner seeks to charge Tenant for repairs made to the Tenants unit, a Tenant may
request and Owner must provide, an estimate of the scope of work and related costs prior to the work
being performed, with the exception of an emergency repair that poses an immediate threat or
imminent danger to the safety of staff or other residents. If the estimated cost of the repair exceeds
$999, Owner shall procure at least two cost estimates.

At the Tenant’s request, Owner must provide Tenant with an invoice or summary of the cost of the
repairs to the Tenant’s unit or otherwise charged to the Tenant within five (5) days of the request.

Tenant has a right to dispute the scope of work and/or cost of the repair in writing. Such “Notice of
Dispute” shall specify the nature of the dispute and be provided to the Owner within five (5) days
following receipt of the invoice or summary of cost of the repairs. Within five (5) days of the Tenant
providing the Notice of Dispute, Owner shall provide Tenant with a written explanation and reasonable
evidence addressing the concerns in the Notice of Dispute.

In the case in which the Tenant is unable to pay for repairs caused by the Tenant, Owner may provide a
reasonable payment plan to be reimbursed for the cost of the repair through the end of the lease
period. Any payments made by the Tenant shall not supersede the rental payment. Failure to comply
with agreed upon reasonable payment plan for repairs shall constitute good cause non-renewal, but not
termination.

If Tenant fails to pay the cost of repairs with agreed upon payment plan, Owner agrees that repair
related damages shall be limited to the actual costs of the performed repair work, reasonable attorney’s
fees, and/or courts costs.



If the Owner files a lawsuit to recover damages prior to a tenant move-out, the Tenant may take up to
30 days from the date the judgment is entered to pay the damages awarded by the court, otherwise
nonpayment is considered good cause for termination or non-renewal.

This section does not apply to a lawsuit to evict for drug activity, violent conduct, or other serious
criminal activity that poses an immediate threat or imminent danger to the safety of staff or other
residents.

Owner shall address and remediate any condition that materially affects the physical health or safety of
an ordinary tenant within seven (7) days from the receipt of notice to the Owner. If Owner is unable to
resolve the issue within the (7) day period, Owner shall provide temporary accommodations in
accordance with the Relocation Assistance provisions, below until such time as the conditions materially
affecting the physical health or safety of an ordinary tenant has been remediated. Any condition causing
an imminent threat or danger to the occupants shall result in the Owner providing a good faith effort to
provide Relocation Assistance within 24 hours from receipt of notice to the Owner, in accordance with
relocation assistance provision below.

Relocation Assistance

Owner agrees to provide any relocation assistance to Tenant for the lessor of 12 months or for the
remainder of the existing lease, if the Tenant must involuntarily vacate the unit, unless the Tenant must
vacate due to the Tenant damaging the unit. If the Tenant intentionally damages the unit to the degree
that the Tenant must involuntarily vacate the unit, no relocation assistance is required to be provided.
Rental assistance shall include actual moving expenses such as movers and material costs, utility
connection fees, non-refundable deposits, application fees, storage, and increases in rent at a
comparable unit during the relocation period. A comparable unit shall be representative of, and equal
to, or better than, the displacement dwelling including the same number of bedrooms and equivalent
square footage. In the event of force majeure (fire, hurricane, flood, freeze or similar act of nature)
leaves the property without an available comparable unit in the property, the Owner will utilize good
faith efforts to relocate the tenant to a comparable unit in a comparable property, however, if Owner is
unable to do so, Tenant shall have the right to terminate the lease.

Tenant’s Right to Return

If the Tenant is temporarily and involuntarily relocated, Owner agrees to provide the Tenant a written
notice providing the opportunity to return to the original leased unit within 10 days after the unit is
occupiable. Once a written notice informing the Tenant the original unit is available the Tenant is
allowed at least 10 days to decide to return to the unit. If the tenant was relocated off property, the
Tenant must meet any applicable State or Federal qualification, re-certification, and/or requirements
prior to returning to unit. If this section conflicts with State or Federal provisions, such as waiting lists,
the State or Federal provisions shall take precedent.

Right to Personal Property
Owner shall not take, hold, or sell personal property of the Tenant or household members without
written notice to the Tenant and a court decision on the rights of the parties except when the property
remains in the unit after the Tenant has moved out of the unit and the property is disposed of in
accordance with State law.



Grounds for Termination

Owner may not terminate the tenancy or refuse to renew the lease of a Tenant except for:

e Tenant willfully and voluntarily seeks to end the lease term in accordance with the lease agreement.

e Serious or repeated violations of the terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement that add up to
good cause; or

e Violations of applicable Federal, State, or local laws; or

e Completion of tenancy period for transitional housing; or

e Permanent uninhabitability of the Property, except where such uninhabitability is caused by the
actions or inactions of the Owner.

Domestic Violence

A tenant cannot be evicted because tenant is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking. Owner may bifurcate a lease to terminate the tenancy of an individual who is a
tenant or lawful occupant and engages in criminal activity directly relating to domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking against another lawful occupant living in the Complex.

Notice of Termination or Non-Renewal

To terminate or non-renew the lease, Owner shall serve written notice upon the Tenant specifying the
grounds for the termination or nonrenewal at least 30 days before the effective date of the termination
or nonrenewal, unless either is based on violent conduct, illegal drug activity, or other criminal activity
that poses an immediate threat or imminent danger to the safety of staff or other residents. The owner
is also exempt from issuing this notice if a Notice of Termination or Non-Renewal has been previously
issued during the preceding 6-month period. The Notice to Terminate or Non-renewal shall be served on
the Tenant by either: (1) both first class mail and either certified or registered mail; or (2) by personal
delivery to the Tenant or a household member eighteen years or older; or (3) affixing the Notice to
Terminate or Non-renewal to the inside of the Main Entry Door of the unit and sending a copy by mail.

Notice of Opportunity to Discuss

The Owner shall provide written Notice of Opportunity to Discuss with the Notice of Termination or Non-
Renewal or seven days prior to a 3-Day Notice to Vacate to inform Tenant of their right to discuss the
proposed termination or non-renewal of tenancy, unless either is based on violent conduct, illegal drug
activity, or other criminal activity that poses an immediate threat or imminent danger to the safety of
staff or other residents. The Notice of Opportunity to Discuss shall be served on the Tenant by either:
(1) both first class mail and either certified or registered mail; or (2) by personal delivery to the Tenant
or a household member eighteen years or older; or (3) affixing the Notice of Opportunity to Discuss to
the inside of the Main Entry Door of the unit and sending a copy by mail.

e The Notice of Opportunity to Discuss must give Tenant at least ten days from the date they
receive the notice to request a meeting with the Owner.

e [f the Tenant makes a timely request, the Owner agrees to meet with the Tenant and to discuss
the proposed termination or nonrenewal and provide Tenant with an opportunity to correct
actions that triggered the 30-Day Notice to Terminate or Non-renewal.

e Owner shall provide Tenant with the opportunity to enter into a financial payment plan if the
Notice of Termination or Non-Renewal is due to an alleged non-payment of rent. Owner shall
ensure the application of monies to cure late rent apply to outstanding rent before being applied
to late payments. Owner shall also accept digital payments as well as cashier’s check and money
order payments.



e |If the Tenant corrects the actions that triggered the Notice to Terminate or Non-Renewal,
including by entering into a financial payment plan, the corrected action(s) may not serve as
ground(s) for termination or eviction.

Notice to Vacate

The Notice to Vacate shall be served on the Tenant by either: (1) both first class mail and either certified
or registered mail; or (2) by personal delivery to the Tenant or a household member eighteen years or
older; or (3) affixing the Notice to Vacate to the inside of the Main Entry Door of the unit and sending a
copy by mail. Owners shall provide a City of San Antonio Notice of Tenant Rights in English and Spanish
with any issued Notice to Vacate.

Failure to Provide Notice

Except for a termination or non-renewal for which a Notice to Terminate or Non-renewal or Notice of
Opportunity to Discuss is not required, the Owner agrees that providing the Notice of Termination or
Non-Renewal, Notice of Opportunity to Discuss, and a Notice to Vacate are conditions precedent to filing
a forcible entry and detainer lawsuit. The Owner agrees that it is the burden of the Owner to show, as
an element of its eviction case, that all applicable notice procedures were followed, and that
termination of tenancy is not effective unless notice procedures are followed correctly as described
above.

Entry into Unit

Owner, Owner's representative, or maintenance staff may enter the unit during reasonable times for
any reasonable business purposes including but not limited annual inspections, preventative care, etc.
after providing at least twenty-four- (24) hours’ notice and a reasonable window of time for entry,
except:

e |If Tenant agrees in a separate written addendum to the lease agreement, which states in large
bold type that the Tenant is not required to sign or agree, the Owner may enter the unit without
24-hours’ notice if Owner is entering for purposes of making a repair request by Tenant; or

e [If the Owner believes, in good faith, that an emergency condition exists that creates serious
property damage or an imminent danger to the Tenant, a member of the Tenant’s household, or
another unit on the property.

If a Tenant or a member of the Tenant’s household who is 18 years of age or older is not present in the
unit at the time of entry, the Owner must provide written documentation in the unit that states the
purpose of entry, the time of entry, and who entered. The Owner also agrees to avoid entering the unit
so frequently as to seriously disturb the Tenant’s peaceful enjoyment of the unit.

This section does not require the Owner to provide specific notice before entering the Tenant’s unit to
post any notice including a Notice to Vacate, as authorized by the Texas Property Code or notice to cure
a default.

Right to Organize
Owner agrees each tenant may conduct activities on the Property related to establishing or operating a
tenant organization, including hosting a tenant organizer at the property.
e If requested, the Owner agrees to meet with Tenant and a member of a tenant organization
during regular business hours to discuss matters related to the Tenant’s unit or the Property as a
whole.



e The Owner may not retaliate against a Tenant or Tenant’s guests because the Tenant or the
Tenant’s guest established, attempted to establish, or participated in a tenant organization. Such
retaliatory behavior may include but is not limited to utility shutoff, towing, lockouts, and
unlawful entry into unit.

Tenant and other residents of such property shall be entitled to access common areas of the property
for tenant organization activities; and the Owner may not impose fees or rules that are not otherwise
applicable to non-organizational activities.

This lease addendum is not to and shall not be interpreted to prohibit a Tenant or tenant organization
from requesting, advocating for, or negotiating additional tenant protections and policies; or from
Owner adopting additional tenant protections and policies.

Other Tenant and Owner Policies

The Tenant understands that the unit leased under the Lease Agreement has received subsidies or
financial consideration from the San Antonio Housing Trust and that, as a condition of these subsidies or
financial consideration, the Tenant is required and hereby agrees to provide Owner with any
information and sign such releases which are necessary to allow Owner to verify the Tenant's income
and otherwise comply with San Antonio Housing Trust policies.

The Tenant agrees to provide Owner accurate and complete information regarding the Tenant's income
and to do so by the date specified in Owner's request. The Tenant understands that the intentional
failure to supply accurate and complete information regarding Tenant's income shall constitute a serious
lease violation and good cause. All Tenant files shall be available for inspection by all applicable federal,
state, and local agencies, including the San Antonio Housing Trust. The Tenant hereby consents to
release of all such information by Owner to governmental agencies, including the San Antonio Housing
Trust.

Owner agrees to provide Tenant a copy of the Lease Agreement and Addendums in the language in
which the lease was negotiated. Owner also agrees to provide Tenant a copy of any other rules or
policies issued by Owner that govern the Tenant’s conduct at the Property.

Owner agrees to attach a copy of the Lease Agreement and all Lease Addendums to any petition filed in
an eviction proceeding against the Tenant. Owner agrees that Owner’s failure to provide a copy of the
leases or any addendum to the Court shall be cause for dismissal without prejudice of any eviction
lawsuit filed by the Owner.

This Addendum is deemed to have been made in compliance with all applicable State and local laws, and
if any section or part is not lawful, only that section or part shall be void, and the balance of the
Addendum shall remain in full force and effect.



The San Antonio Housing Trust does not determine if an Owner has good cause or if a resident has
violated their lease terms. Tenants may contact the Texas Rio Grande Legal Aide at www.trla.org or
access other legal help through www.texaslawhelp.org.

Tenant Signature Date

Owner’s Representative Signature Date

THIS TENANT PROTECTION LEASE ADDENDUM MUST BE ATTACHED TO EACH LEASE AND RETAINED WITH TENANT
LEASE RECORDS. A COPY OF THIS TENANT PROTECTION LEASE ADDENDUM MUST BE PROVIDED TO TENANT AFTER
SIGNING



Attachment B

HUD Affirmative Fair Housing
Marketing Plan



Note to all applicants/respondents: This form was developed with Nuance, the official HUD software for the creation of HUD forms.
HUD has made available instructions for downloading a free installation of a Nuance reader that allows the user to fill-in and save this
form in Nuance. Please see http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=nuancereaderinstall.pdf for the instructions. Using
Nuance software is the only means of completing this form.

Affirmative Fair Housing U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2529-0013
. and Urban Development (exp.12/31/2016)
Marketlng Plan (AFHMP) - Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity

Multifamily Housing

la. Project Name & Address (including City, County, State & Zip Code) 1b. Project Contract Number 1c. No. of Units

1d. Census Tract

le. Housing/Expanded Housing Market Area
Housing Market Area:
Expanded Housing Market Area:

1f. Managing Agent Name, Address (including City, County, State & Zip Code), Telephone Number & Email Address

1g. Application/Owner/Developer Name, Address (including City, County, State & Zip Code), Telephone Number & Email Address

1h. Entity Responsible for Marketing (check all that apply)

I:l Owner I:l Agent |:| Other (specify) |

Position, Name (if known), Address ( including City, County, State & Zip Code), Telephone Number & Email Address

1li. To whom should approval and other correspondence concerning this AFHMP be sent? Indicate Name, Address (including City,
State & Zip Code), Telephone Number & E-Mail Address.

2a. Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan

Plan Type [Please Select Plan Type | Date of the First Approved AFHMP: |

Reason(s) for current update: |

2b. HUD-Approved Occupancy of the Project (check all that apply)
[ ] Eidery [] Famiy [ ] mixed (Eideriy/Disabled) [ ] Disabled

2c. Date of Initial Occupancy 2d. Advertising Start Date

Advertising must begin at least 90 days prior to initial or renewed occupancy for new

construction and substantial rehabilitation projects.

Date advertising began or will begin |:|

For existing projects, select below the reason advertising will be used:

To fill existing unit vacancies |:|
To place applicants on a waiting list |:| (which currently has |:| individuals)
To reopen a closed waiting list |:| (which currently has |:| individuals)

Previous editions are obsolete Page 1 of 8 Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



3a. Demographics of Project and Housing Market Area
Complete and submit Worksheet 1.

3b. Targeted Marketing Activity

Based on your completed Worksheet 1, indicate which demographic group(s) in the housing market area is/are least likely to apply for the
housing without special outreach efforts. (check all that apply)

|:| White [[] American Indian or Alaska Native []Asian [[] Black or African American
[ ]Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander [[]Hispanic or Latino [ Persons with Disabilities
|:| Families with Children |:| Other ethnic group, religion, etc. (specify)

4a. Residency Preference

Is the owner requesting a residency preference? If yes, complete questions 1 through 5. [Please Select Yes or No |
If no, proceed to Block 4b.
(1) Type [Please Select Type |

(2) Is the residency preference area:
The same as the AFHMP housing/expanded housing market area as identified in Block 1e?  [Please Select Yes or No |

The same as the residency preference area of the local PHA in whose jurisdiction the project is located? [Please Select Yes or No |

(3) What is the geographic area for the residency preference?

(4) What is the reason for having a residency preference?

(5) How do you plan to periodically evaluate your residency preference to ensure that it is in accordance with the non-discrimination
and equal opportunity requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a)?

Complete and submit Worksheet 2 when requesting a residency preference (see also 24 CFR 5.655(c)(1)) for residency
preference requirements. The requirements in 24 CFR 5.655(c)(1) will be used by HUD as guidelines for evaluating
residency preferences consistent with the applicable HUD program requirements. See also HUD Occupancy
Handbook (4350.3) Chapter 4, Section 4.6 for additional guidance on preferences.

4b. Proposed Marketing Activities: Community Contacts 4c. Proposed Marketing Activities: Methods of Advertising
Complete and submit Worksheet 3 to describe your use of community Complete and submit Worksheet 4 to describe your
contacts to market the project to those least likely to apply. proposed methods of advertising that will be used to

market to those least likely to apply. Attach copies of
advertisements, radio and television scripts, Internet
advertisements, websites, and brochures, etc.

Previous editions are obsolete Page 2 of 8 Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



5a. Fair Housing Poster
The Fair Housing Poster must be prominently displayed in all offices in which sale or rental activity takes place (24 CFR 200.620(e)).

Check below all locations where the Poster will be displayed.
|:| Rental Office |:| Real Estate Office |:| Model Unit |:| Other (specify)

5b. Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan
The AFHMP must be available for public inspection at the sales or rental office (24 CFR 200.625). Check below all locations

where the AFHMP will be made available.

|:| Rental Office I:l Real Estate Office |:| Model Unit |:| Other (specify)

5c. Project Site Sign
Project Site Signs, if any, must display in a conspicuous position the HUD approved Equal Housing Opportunity logo, slogan, or statement
(24 CFR 200.620(f)). Check below all locations where the Project Site Sign will be displayed. Please submit photos of Project signs.

[ ] Rental Office |:| Real Estate Office [ ]Model Unit [ ] Entrance to Project |:| Other (specify)
The size of the Project Site Sign will be | | x | |
The Equal Housing Opportunity logo or slogan or statement will be | | X | |

6. Evaluation of Marketing Activities
Explain the evaluation process you will use to determine whether your marketing activities have been successful in attracting

individuals least likely to apply, how often you will make this determination, and how you will make decisions about future marketing
based on the evaluation process.

Previous editions are obsolete Page 3 of 8 Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



7a. Marketing Staff
What staff positions are/will be responsible for affirmative marketing?

7b. Staff Training and Assessment: AFHMP
(1) Has staff been trained on the AFHMP? |Please Select Yes or No |

(2) Has staff been instructed in writing and orally on non-discrimination and fair housing policies as required by
24 CFR 200.620(c)? [Please Select Yes or No |
(3) If yes, who provides instruction on the AFHMP and Fair Housing Act, and how frequently?

(4) Do you periodically assess staff skills on the use of the AFHMP and the application of the Fair Housing

Act? |Please Select Yes or No |
(5) If yes, how and how often?

7c. Tenant Selection Training/Staff
(1) Has staff been trained on tenant selection in accordance with the project’s occupancy policy, including any residency preferences?

[Please Select Yes or No |

(2) What staff positions are/will be responsible for tenant selection?

7d. Staff Instruction/Training:
Describe AFHM/Fair Housing Act staff training, already provided or to be provided, to whom it was/will be provided, content of training,
and the dates of past and anticipated training. Please include copies of any AFHM/Fair Housing staff training materials.

Previous editions are obsolete Page 4 of 8 Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



8. Additional Considerations Is there anything else you would like to tell us about your AFHMP to help ensure that
your program is marketed to those least likely to apply for housing in your project? Please attach additional sheets, as
needed.

9. Review and Update
By signing this form, the applicant/respondent agrees to implement its AFHMP, and to review and update its AFHMP

in accordance with the instructions to item 9 of this form in order to ensure continued compliance with HUD’s Affirmative Fair
Housing Marketing Regulations (see 24 CFR Part 200, Subpart M). | hereby certify that all the information stated herein,
as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will prosecute
false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (See 18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012;
31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802).

Signature of person submitting this Plan & Date of Submission (mm/dd/yyyy)

Name (type or print)

Title & Name of Company

For HUD-Office of Housing Use Only For HUD-Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Use Only

Reviewing Official:

I:l Approval |:| Disapproval

Signature & Date (mm/dd/yyyy) Signature & Date (mm/dd/yyyy)
Name Name

(type (type

or or

print) print)

Title Title

Previous editions are obsolete Page 5 of 8 Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average six (6) hours per initial response, and four (4) hours for
updated plans, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control number.

Purpose of Form: All applicants for participation in FHA subsidized and unsubsidized multifamily housing programs with five or more
units (see 24 CFR 200.615) must complete this Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) form as specified in 24 CFR
200.625, and in accordance with the requirements in 24 CFR 200.620. The purpose of this AFHMP is to help applicants offer equal
housing opportunities regardless of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, or disability. The AFHMP helps
owners/agents (respondents) effectively market the availability of housing opportunities to individuals of both minority and non-minority
groups that are least likely to apply for occupancy. Affirmative fair housing marketing and planning should be part of all new
construction, substantial rehabilitation, and existing project marketing and advertising activities.

An AFHM program, as specified in this Plan, shall be in effect for each multifamily project throughout the life of the mortgage (24 CFR
200.620(a)). The AFHMP, once approved by HUD, must be made available for public inspection at the sales or rental offices of the
respondent (24 CFR 200.625) and may not be revised without HUD approval. This form contains no questions of a confidential nature.

Applicability: The form and worksheets must be completed and submitted by all FHA subsidized and unsubsidized multifamily

housing program applicants.

INSTRUCTIONS:

Send completed form and worksheets to your local HUD Office, Attention: Director, Office of Housing

Part 1: Applicant/Respondent and Project
Identification. Blocks 1a, 1b, 1c, 1g, 1h, and 1i are self-
explanatory.

Block 1d- Respondents may obtain the Census tract
number from the U.S. Census Bureau
(http://factfinder2.census.gov/main.html) when
completing Worksheet One.

Block 1e- Respondents should identify both the housing
market area and the expanded housing market area for
their multifamily housing projects. Use abbreviations if
necessary. A housing market area is the area from
which a multifamily housing project owner/agent may
reasonably expect to draw a substantial number of its
tenants. This could be a county or Metropolitan Division.
The U.S. Census Bureau provides a range of levels to
draw from.

An expanded housing market area is a larger
geographic area, such as a Metropolitan Division or a
Metropolitan Statistical Area, which may provide
additional demographic diversity in terms of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, familial status, or disability.

Block 1f- The applicant should complete this block only if
a Managing Agent (the agent cannot be the applicant) is
implementing the AFHMP.

Previous editions are obsolete

Page 6 of 8

Part 2: Type of AFHMP

Block 2a- Respondents should indicate the status of the
AFHMP, i.e., initial or updated, as well as the date of the
first approved AFHMP. Respondents should also provide
the reason (s) for the current update, whether the update is
based on the five-year review or due to significant changes
in project or local demographics (See instructions for Part
9).

Block 2b- Respondents should identify all groups HUD has
approved for occupancy in the subject project, in
accordance with the contract, grant, etc.

Block 2c- Respondents should specify the date the project
was/will be first occupied.

Block 2d- For new construction and substantial
rehabilitation projects, advertising must begin at least 90
days prior to initial occupancy. In the case of existing
projects, respondents should indicate whether the
advertising will be used to fill existing vacancies, to place
individuals on the project’s waiting list, or to re-open a
closed waiting list. Please indicate how many people are
on the waiting list when advertising begins.

Form HUD 935.2A (12/2011)


http://factfinder2.census.gov/main.html

Part 3 Demographics and Marketing Area.
"Least likely to apply" means that there is an
identifiable presence of a specific demographic
group in the housing market area, but members of
that group are not likely to apply for the housing
without targeted outreach, including marketing
materials in other languages for limited English
proficient individuals, and alternative formats for
persons with disabilities. Reasons for not applying
may include, but are not limited to, insufficient
information about housing opportunities, language
barriers, or transportation impediments.

Block 3a - Using Worksheet 1, the respondent

should indicate the demographic composition of the

project’s residents, current project applicant data,

census tract, housing market area, and expanded housing
market area. The applicable housing market area

and expanded housing market area should be indicated

in Block 1e. Compare groups within rows/across columns on
Worksheet 1 to identify any under-represented group(s)
relative to the surrounding housing market area and expanded
housing market area, i.e., those group(s) “least likely to apply”
for the housing without targeted outreach and marketing. If there
is a particular group or subgroup with members of a protected
class that has an identifiable presence in the housing market area,
but is not included in Worksheet 1, please specify under “Other.”

Respondents should use the most current demographic
data from the U.S. Census or another official source such
as a local government planning office. Please indicate the
source of your data in Part 8 of this form.

Block 3b - Using the information from the completed
Worksheet 1, respondents should identify the
demographic group(s) least likely to apply for the
housing without special outreach efforts by checking
all that apply.

Part 4 - Marketing Program and Residency Preference (if
any).

Block 4a - A residency preference is a preference for
admission of persons who reside or work in a specified
geographic area (see 24 CFR 5.655(c)(1)(ii)). Respondents
should indicate whether a residency preference is being
utilized, and if so, respondents should specify if it is new,
revised, or continuing. If a respondent wishes to utilize a
residency preference, it must state the preference area (and
provide a map delineating the precise area) and state the
reason for having such a preference. The respondent must
ensure that the preference is in accordance with the non-
discrimination and equal opportunity requirements in 24 CFR
5.105(a) (see 24 CFR 5.655(c)(1)).

Previous editions are obsolete

Page 7 of 8

Respondents should use Worksheet 2 to show how the

percentage of the eligible population living or working in the

residency preference area compares to that of residents of the project,
project applicant data, census tract, housing market area, and
expanded housing market area. The percentages would be the same as
shown on completed Worksheet 1.

Block 4b - Using Worksheet 3, respondents should describe

their use of community contacts to help market the project to those
least likely to apply. This table should include the name of a
contact person, his/her address, telephone number, previous
experience working with the target population(s), the
approximate date contact was/will be initiated, and the specific
role the community contact will play in assisting with affirmative
fair housing marketing or outreach.

Block 4c - Using Worksheet 4, respondents should describe

their proposed method(s) of advertising to market to those

least likely to apply. This table should identify each media

option, the reason for choosing this media, and the language

of the advertisement. Alternative format(s) that will be used to reach
persons with disabilities, and logo(s) that will appear on the
various materials (as well as their size) should be described.

Please attach a copy of the advertising or marketing material.

Part 5 — Availability of the Fair Housing Poster, AFHMP,
and Project Site Sign.

Block 5a - The Fair Housing Poster must be prominently
displayed in all offices in which sale or rental activity takes
place (24 CFR 200.620(e)). Respondents should indicate all
locations where the Fair Housing Poster will be displayed.

Block 5b -The AFHMP must be available for public inspection
at the sales or rental office (24 CFR 200.625). Check all of the
locations where the AFHMP will be available.

Block 5c¢ -The Project Site Sign must display in a conspicuous
position the HUD-approved Equal Housing Opportunity logo,
slogan, or statement (24 CFR 200.620(f)). Respondents should
indicate where the Project Site Sign will be displayed, as well
as the size of the Sign and the size of the logo, slogan, or
statement. Please submit photographs of project site
signs.

Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



Part 6 - Evaluation of Marketing Activities.

Respondents should explain the evaluation process to be used
to determine if they have been successful in attracting those
individuals identified as least likely to apply. Respondents
should also explain how they will make decisions about future
marketing activities based on the evaluations.

Part 7- Marketing Staff and Training.
Block 7a -Respondents should identify staff positions that
are/will be responsible for affirmative marketing.

Block 7b - Respondents should indicate whether staff has been
trained on the AFHMP and Fair Housing Act.

Please indicate who provides the training and how frequently.

In addition, respondents should specify whether they periodically
assess staff members’ skills in using the AFHMP and in applying
the Fair Housing Act. They should state how often

they assess employee skills and how they conduct the
assessment.

Block 7c - Respondents should indicate whether staff has been
trained on tenant selection in accordance with the project’s
occupancy policy, including residency preferences (if any).
Respondents should also identify those staff positions that
are/will be responsible for tenant selection.

Block 7d - Respondents should include copies of any written
materials related to staff training, and identify the dates of past
and anticipated training.

Part 8 - Additional Considerations.

Respondents should describe their efforts not previously

mentioned that were/are planned to attract those individuals
least likely to apply for the subject housing.

Previous editions are obsolete

Page 80of 8

Part 9 - Review and Update.

By signing the respondent assumes responsibility for
implementing the AFHMP. Respondents must review their
AFHMP every five years or when the local Community
Development jurisdiction’s Consolidated Plan is updated, or

when there are significant changes in the demographics of the
project or the local housing market area. When reviewing the plan,
the respondent should consider the current demographics of the
housing market area to determine if there have been demographic
changes in the population in terms of race, color, national

origin, religion, sex, familial status, or disability. The respondent will

then determine if the population least to likely to apply for the housing
is still the population identified in the AFHMP, whether the advertising

and publicity cited in the current AFHMP are still appropriate, or

whether advertising sources should be modified or expanded. Even if

the demographics of the housing market area have not
changed, the respondent should determine if the outreach
currently being performed is reaching those it is intended to
reach as measured by project occupancy and applicant data. If
not, the AFHMP should be updated. The revised AFHMP must
be submitted to HUD for approval. HUD may review whether the
affirmative marketing is actually being performed in
accordance with the AFHMP. If based on their review,
respondents determine the AFHMP does not need to be
revised, they should maintain a file documenting what was
reviewed, what was found as a result of the review, and why
no changes were required. HUD may review this
documentation.

Notification of Intent to Begin Marketing.

No later than 90 days prior to the initiation of rental

marketing activities, the respondent must submit notification

of intent to begin marketing. The notification is required by the
AFHMP Compliance Regulations (24 CFR 108.15). The
Notification is submitted to the Office of Housing in the HUD Office
servicing the locality in which the proposed housing will be located.
Upon receipt of the Notification of Intent to Begin Marketing from
the applicant, the monitoring office will review any previously
approved plan and may schedule a pre-occupancy conference.
Such conference will be held prior to initiation of sales/rental
marketing activities. At this conference, the previously
approved AFHMP will be reviewed with the applicant to
determine if the plan, and/or its proposed implementation,
requires modification prior to initiation of marketing in order to
achieve the objectives of the AFHM regulation and the plan.

OMB approval of the AFHMP includes approval of this
notification procedure as part of the AFHMP. The burden hours
for such notification are included in the total designated for this
AFHMP form.

Form HUD-935.2A (12/2011)



Worksheet 1: Determining Demographic Groups Least Likely to Apply for Housing Opportunities
(See AFHMP, Block 3b)

In the respective columns below, indicate the percentage of demographic groups among the project’s residents, current project
applicant data, census tract, housing market area, and expanded housing market area (See instructions to Block 1e). If you are a new
construction or substantial rehabilitation project and do not have residents or project applicant data, only report information for census
tract, housing market area, and expanded market area. The purpose of this information is to identify any under-representation of
certain demographic groups in terms of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, or disability. If there is significant
under-representation of any demographic group among project residents or current applicants in relation to the housing/expanded
housing market area, then targeted outreach and marketing should be directed towards these individuals least likely to apply. Please
indicate under-represented groups in Block 3b of the AFHMP. Please attach maps showing both the housing market area and the
expanded housing market area.

Demographic Project’s Project’s Census Tract Housing Market Area Expanded
Characteristics Residents Applicant Data Housing Market
Area
% White

% Black or African
American

% Hispanic or Latino

% Asian

% American Indian or
Alaskan Native

% Native Hawaiian or
Pacific Islander

%Persons
with
Disabilities

% Families with Children
under the age of 18

Other (specify)




Worksheet 2: Establishing a Residency Preference Area (See AFHMP, Block 4a)

Complete this Worksheet if you wish to continue, revise, or add a residency preference, which is a preference for admission of persons
who reside or work in a specified geographic area (see 24 CFR 5.655(c)(1)(ii)). If a residency preference is utilized, the preference
must be in accordance with the non-discrimination and equal opportunity requirements contained in 24 CFR 5.105(a). This Worksheet
will help show how the percentage of the population in the residency preference area compares to the demographics of the project 's
residents, applicant data, census tract, housing market area, and expanded housing market area. Please attach a map clearly

delineating the residency preference geographical area.

Demographic
Characteristics

Project’s
Residents

(as determined
in Worksheet 1)

Project’s
IApplicant Data
(as determined
in Worksheet 1)

Census Tract
(as determined
in Worksheet

1)

Housing Market
Area (as
determined

in Worksheet 1)

Expanded
Housing Market
Area

(as determined in
Worksheet 1)

Residency
Preference Area
(if applicable)

% White

% Black or African
American

% Hispanic or
Latino

% Asian

% American Indian
or Alaskan Native

% Native Hawaiian
or Pacific Islander

% Persons with
Disabilities

% Families with
Children under the

age of 18

Other (specify)




Worksheet 3: Proposed Marketing Activities —Community Contacts (See AFHMP, Block 4b)

For each targeted marketing population designated as least likely to apply in Block 3b, identify at least one community contact
organization you will use to facilitate outreach to the particular population group. This could be a social service agency, religious
body, advocacy group, community center, etc. State the names of contact persons, their addresses, their telephone numbers, their
previous experience working with the target population, the approximate date contact was/will be initiated, and the specific role they
will play in assisting with the affirmative fair housing marketing. Please attach additional pages if necessary.

Targeted Population(s) Community Contact(s), including required information noted above.




Worksheet 4: Proposed Marketing Activities — Methods of Advertising (See AFHMP, Block 4c)

Complete the following table by identifying your targeted marketing population(s), as indicated in Block 3b, as well as
the methods of advertising that will be used to market to that population. For each targeted population, state the

means of advertising that you will use as applicable to that group and the reason for choosing this media. In each block,
in addition to specifying the media that will be used (e.g., name of newspaper, television station, website, location of
bulletin board, etc.) state any language(s) in which the material will be provided, identify any alternative format(s) to be
used (e.g. Braille, large print, etc.), and specify the logo(s) (as well as size) that will appear on the various materials.
Attach additional pages, if necessary, for further explanation. Please attach a copy of the advertising or marketing

material.

Targeted Population(s)—
Methods of Advertising |

Targeted Population:

Targeted Population:

Targeted Population:

Newspaper(s)

Radio Station(s)

TV Station(s)

Electronic Media

Bulletin Boards

Brochures, Notices, Flyers

Other (specify)




Attachment C

City of San Antonio
Non-Discrimination Ordinance



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

ANORDINANCE 2(013-09-05-0577

ADOPTING A CONSOLIDATED NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY
WITH EXPANDED PROTECTIONS; ESTABLISHING AND AMENDING
CERTAIN SECTIONS OF THE CITY CODE; ADOPTING A NON-
DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER TITLE VI OF
THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 AND RELATED STATUTES; AND
PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION.

* * * * *

WHEREAS, the City of San Antonio has adopted separate non-discrimination policies and
practices over the years; and

WHEREAS, the city now desires to provide for and adopt a comprehensive and expanded non-
discrimination policy with revisions to outdated terminology; and

WHEREAS, Part II of the City Code, Chapter 2, Administration, Article 1X, Section 2-529
prohibits discrimination by the city when appointing members to boards and commissions and
also prohibits discrimination by these appointed officials in their public positions; and

WHEREAS, for city employees, City Code, Chapter 2, Administration, Article IV, Divisions 1
through 3, among other things, prohibit discrimination by the city in the hiring and promotion of
city employees, and provide a means for complaint, investigation and redress; and

WHEREAS, City Code, Chapter 9, Community Relations, Article I, Section 9-19 prohibits
discrimination by private parties with regard to places of public accommodation; and

WHEREAS, City Code, Chapter 9, Community Relations, Article 111, Discriminatory Housing
Practices and Ordinance No. 2009-05-14-0385 prohibit discrimination in housing; and

WHEREAS, the city desires to consolidate the existing Code sections and adopted Ordinance
sections that govern discriminatory housing practices so that the public may more easily locate
them; and

WHEREAS, the city has administratively issued a Title VI and Related Statutes Non-
discrimination Statement to the TxDOT Civil Rights Division, which the City Council now
desires to adopt, and also includes associated non-discrimination language within city contracts;
and

WHEREAS, City Code, Chapter 2, Administration, Article I, Section 2-8(a), adopted in 1989,
prohibited discrimination in the award of subcontracts, but was superseded by a Commercial
Non-discrimination Policy on June 17, 2010 with language that also must be included in all
contracts to which SBEDA Ordinance No. 2010-06-17-0531 applies; and



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

WHEREAS, the city desires that contracts contain language that requires compliance with the
protections afforded by a comprehensive, expanded non-discrimination policy; and

WHEREAS, the request for consideration of this issue by the full City Council was brought
forward by a City Council Request memorandum, signed by five members of the Council, and
has been considered at open City Council Governance Committee and “B” Session meetings;
NOW THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN ANTONIO:

SECTION 1. City Council adopts a consolidated Non-Discrimination Policy, which expands
protections and revises outdated terminology, to be included in Chapter 2, Administration, and
establishes Article X which shall be entitled Non-Discrimination Policies as follows:

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION.
ARTICLE X. - Non-Discrimination Policies.

DIVISION 1 — Generally.

Sec. 2-543-549, — Reserved.

Sec. 2-550. — Non-Discrimination Policy.

(a) It shall be the general policy of the City of San Antonio to prohibit discrimination
on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, veteran status, age or disability, as set forth in the Divisions following,
unless exempted by state or federal law or as otherwise indicated.

(b) A religious corporation, association, society or educational institution or an
educational organization operated, supervised or controlled in whole or in
substantial part by a religious corporation, association or society does not violate
the non-discrimination policy by limiting employment or giving a preference in
employment to members of the same religion, as determined solely by the religious
corporation, association, or institution.

(¢) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as supporting or advocating any
particular lifestyle or religious view. To the contrary, it is the intention of this
Ordinance that all persons be treated fairly and equally and it is the express intent of
this Ordinance to guarantee to all of our citizens fair and equal treatment under the
law.

(d) Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring any person or organization to support
or advocate any particular lifestyle or religious view, or advance any particular
message or idea.



LOH

09/05/13
Item #4

Sec. 2-551. — Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this Section, except where the context clearly indicates a
different meaning in Divisions below:

Age means an individual at least 40 years of age.

Disability means a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits at least one
major life activity, a record of the impairment, or being regarded as having the impairment.
This term does not include the current, illegal use of or addiction to a controlled substance as
defined under state and federal law.

Gender identity means a gender-related identity, appearance, expression or behavior of an
individual, regardless of the individual’s assigned sex at birth.

Religion means all aspects of religious observance and practice, as well as belief, unless
an employer demonstrates that the employer is unable to reasonably accommodate an
employee's or prospective employee's religious observance or practice without undue
hardship on the conduct of the employer's business.

Sex includes both sex, the biological differences between men and women, and gender;
and encompasses sexual orientation and gender identity.

Sexual orientation means an individual’s real orientation or orientation perceived by
another as heterosexual, homosexual, bisexual or asexual.

Veteran status means a person who served in the active military, naval, or air service, and
who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable, as specified in 38
U.S.C. 101(2). “Active service” includes full-time Federal service in the National Guard or a
Reserve component.

Sec. 2-552. — Appointed Officials, Boards and Commissions.

(a) Appointments to Boards and Commissions.
When making appointments to boards and commissions, the city shall not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, veteran status, age or disability.

(b) Discrimination by Appointed Officials — Malfeasance.

(1) No appointed official or member of a board or commission shall engage in
discrimination against any person, group of persons, or organization on the basis
of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
veteran status, age or disability, while acting in their official capacity while in
such public position.



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

(2) Violation of this standard shall be considered malfeasance in office, and the
City Council shall be authorized to take action as provided by law to remove the
offending person from office.

Sec. 2-553. — Reserved.

DIVISION 2 — CITY OF SAN ANTONIO EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.

Sec. 2-554. - Policy.

(a) The city will maintain a policy of equal employment opportunity. No city employee
or applicant for employment with the city will be denied employment or promotion
because of race, color, religion, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
veteran status, age or national origin. Fair and impartial treatment will be extended
to all city employees and applicants for employment with the city.

Sec. 2-555. - Establishment of program.
There is hereby established a city equal employment opportunity program.

Sec. 2-556. - Division of equal employment opportunity, created, duties.

(a) There is hereby created a division of equal employment opportunity which shall be
directly responsible to the city manager or designee.

(b) The division will administer and monitor the established equal employment
opportunity program in accordance with existing federal, state, and city laws.

(¢) The division will initiate investigations into any alleged discriminatory practices
within the city.

Sec. 2-557. - Duties of division generally.

(a) The equal employment opportunity division will be responsible for the
implementation of this program.

(b) The equal employment opportunity division will work closely with all city
departments to provide city employees and applicants for employment with the city
with an opportunity to express complaints of discrimination based on race, color,
religion, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, age or
national origin.

(¢) The equal employment opportunity division will also work with the city training
officer to orientate city employees to the functions of the program. Counseling will
be provided to all city employees and applicants for employment with the city.



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

Sec. 2-558. - Complaints, procedure.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

City employees may register complaints of discrimination with the city equal
employment division, and complaints will be given prompt consideration. An
investigation to determine the cause for the complaint will be conducted and
findings will be acted upon without undue delay.

All complaints will be investigated by the equal employment opportunity division
and findings submitted to the city manager or designee without undue delay.
Findings also will be relayed to the complainant and other persons officially
involved. If it is determined that a violation has been committed, the situation will
be corrected without undue delay.

Discrimination complaints will be submitted in writing to the equal employment
opportunity division. The equal employment opportunity division will be available
to assist in aiding city employees who may lack the skill to submit the written
report.

An interview with the equal employment opportunity division will be scheduled to
verify the following:

When the alleged violation occurred.

Against whom the alleged discrimination was registered.
Location of the alleged offense.

Person allegedly discriminated against.

Nature of the alleged offense.

Names of all persons and witnesses involved.

Remedy sought by the complainant.

Sec. 2-559. - Unwarranted complaints; procedure.

If the complaint is found to be unwarranted, the complainant will be notified of such.
The city manager or designee may conduct further investigation, confirm or deny the original
decision. If there are legal questions involved, the complaint will be sent to the city legal
department for review.

Secs. 2-560—2-570. - Reserved.

DIVISION 3. — OFFICE OF EMPLOYEE RELATIONS, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
DIVISION.

Sec. 2-571. - Policy.

The city will maintain a policy of equal employment opportunity. No city employee or
applicant for employment with the city will be denied employment or promotion because
of race, color, religion, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status,



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

age or national origin. Fair and impartial treatment will be extended to all city employees
and applicants for employment with the city.

Sec. 2-572. - Functions.

The office of employee relations, under the direction of the city manager or designee will
be responsible for the following functions:

(1) Equal employment opportunity division:

a.

Implements and monitors an equal employment opportunity program in
accordance with the guidelines established by federal legislation;

Works closely with city departments to ensure that city employees and
applicants for employment with the city have an opportunity to express
complaints of discrimination based on race, color, religion, disability, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, age or national origin. A
complaint filed with the equal employment opportunity office will prompt
immediate investigations with findings reported to the city manager’s designee.
Findings also will be relayed to the complainant and other persons officially
involved. When it is determined that a violation has occurred, the corrective
action will be taken without undue delay and will be monitored to ensure
compliance;

Provides counseling as to fair employment practice provisions of law to city
employees, applicants for employment with the city, and supervisors of all
levels of management. Assists the city training officer, as required, to acquaint
city employees with the equal employment opportunity program;

Insures that assistance is available to aid city employees who may lack the skill
to submit a written complaint;

Is responsible to establish an interview technique and checklist to assure a
thorough and complete investigation of all written complaints.

Sec. 2-573. - Applicability of equal employment opportunity program.

The following provisions of this division are also applicable to the equal employment
opportunity program:

(1) The director of the department in which the complaint arose will cooperate and
require all city employees of the department to cooperate with the equal
employment opportunity officer investigating the complaint. All city employees
having any knowledge of the complaint shall furnish statements of testimony under
oath without a pledge of confidence.



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

(2) If the complaint is found to be unwarranted, the complainant will be notified of
such. The city manager's designee may conduct further investigation, and confirm
or deny the original decision. If there are legal questions involved, the complaint
will be sent to the city's legal department for review.

(3) Equal employment opportunity division employees, complainants, equal
employment opportunity counselors, individuals providing information regarding
complaints, shall not be harassed, intimidated, reprised, or retaliated against in any
way preceding, during or upon completion of any equal employment opportunity
investigation.

(4) Nothing in this division will be construed to lessen a supervisor's obligation to
supervise those under him/her nor will it be construed to permit an employee of the
city to act in a disrespectful manner prejudicial to good order.

Secs. 2-574—2-590. - Reserved.
DIVISION 4. — AFFIRMATIVE ACTION.

Sec. 2-591. - Plan adopted.

A copy of the most recently adopted affirmative action plan is available in the Office of
the City Clerk and is incorporated by reference as if set forth at length herein. This
affirmative action plan supersedes all previous plans and modifications to such plans.

DIVISION 5 — PLACES OF PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION.

Sec. 2-592. - Discrimination prohibited; policy.

It shall be unlawful for any person, or any employee or agent thereof within the city, to
discriminate against, withhold from or deny any person, because of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, age or disability, any
of the advantages, facilities or services offered to the general public by a place of public
accommodation.

Sec. 2-593. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Division, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a
different meaning:

Hotel and motel shall include every establishment offering lodging to transient guests for
compensation, but such terms shall not apply to any such establishment if the majority of
occupants therein are permanent residents.

Place of public accommodation shall include every business within the city, whether
wholesale or retail, which is open to the general public and offers, for compensation, any
product, service or facility. The term place of public accommodation shall include, but not be



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

limited to, all taverns, hotels, motels, apartment hotels, apartment houses with four (4) or
more tenant units, restaurants or any place where food or beverages are sold, retail and
wholesale establishments, hospitals, theaters, motion picture houses, museums, bowling
alleys, golf courses and all public conveyances, as well as the stations or terminals thereof.

Restaurant shall include every cafe, cafeteria, coffee shop, sandwich shop, snack bar,
supper club, soda fountain, soft drink or ice cream parlor, luncheonette, or other similar
establishment, which offers food or beverages for purchase and consumption on the
premises, but shall not include places at which intoxicating beverages are sold otherwise than
as an accompaniment to meals.

Theater shall include every place, whether indoors or out-of-doors, at which any
theatrical performance, moving picture show, musical concert or recital, dramatic reading or
monologue, circus, carnival, or other like entertainment or amusement is offered for
compensation.

Sec. 2-594. - Exemptions.

This Division shall not, however, apply to any hotel, motel, restaurant or theater operated
by a bona fide private club not conducted for the purpose of evading this Division when the
accommodations, advantages, facilities and services are restricted to the members of such
club and their guests; nor to any bona fide social, fraternal, educational, civic, political or
religious organization, when the profits of such accommodations, advantages, facilities and
services, above reasonable and necessary expenses, are solely for the benefit or mission of
such organization.

Nothing in Division 5 will be construed as allowing any person to enter any sex-segregated
space for any unlawful purpose.

Sec. 2-595. - Effect on civil remedies now available.

This Division shall neither add to nor detract from any civil remedies now available to
persons subject to unlawful discrimination.

Secs. 2-596 —2-620. - Reserved.

DIVISION 6. — DISCRIMINATORY HOUSING PRACTICES.
Subdivision I — Declaration of Policy, Purpose and Authority.
Sec. 2-621. —Policy.

It is the policy of the city, through fair, orderly and lawful procedures, to promote the
opportunity for each person to obtain housing without regard to race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status, national origin or
age. This policy is grounded upon a recognition of the right of every person to have access
to adequate housing of the person’s own choice, and that the denial of this right because of



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability,
familial status, national origin or age is detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the
inhabitants of the City and constitutes an unjust deprivation of rights, which is within the
power and proper responsibility of government to prevent.

Sec. 2-622. - Purpose.

The purposes of this Division are:

(a)
(b)

(c)

To provide for fair housing practices in the City,

To create a procedure for investigating and settling complaints of discriminatory
housing practices, and

To provide rights and remedies substantially equivalent to those granted under state
and federal law.

Sec. 2-623. - Authority.

This Division is enacted pursuant to authority explicitly granted municipalities by the
Texas Constitution Art. XI., Section 5; Texas Local Government Code Chapter 51 -
Subchapter E, Chapter 54 and Sec. 214.903; and Texas Property Code Chapter 301.

Subdivision II — Definitions.

Sec. 2-624. - Definitions.

The following definitions apply to words used in this Division.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Accessible means that area of a housing accommodation that can be approached,
entered and used by a person with a physical disability.

Accessible route means a continuous unobstructed path connecting accessible
elements and spaces in a housing accommodation that can be negotiated by a person
with a severe disability using a wheelchair and that is also safe for and usable by a
person with other disabilities.

Aggrieved Person includes any person who:

(1) Claims to have been injured by a discriminatory housing practice, or

(2) Believes that such person will be injured by a discriminatory housing practice
that is about to occur.

Complainant means a person who lodges or files a written complaint with the Fair
Housing Office.



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

(©

®

(&)

(h)
(1)

G

&)

Conciliation means the attempted resolution of issues raised by a complainant or by
the investigation of the complaint, through informal negotiations involving the
aggrieved person, the respondent, and the Fair Housing Office.

Conciliation agreement means a written agreement setting forth the resolution of
the issues in conciliation.

Disability means:

(1) a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the
major life activities of such individual;

(2) arecord of such an impairment; or
(3) being regarded as having such an impairment.

This term does not include the current, illegal use of or addiction to a
controlled substance as defined under state and federal law.

Discriminatory housing practice means an act prohibited by this Division.

Dwelling means:

(1) any building, structure, or part of a building or structure that is occupied as, or
designed or intended for occupancy as, a residence by one or more families;
and,

(2) any vacant land that is offered for sale or lease for the construction or location
of a building, structure or part of a building or structure described in

paragraph (a) of this definition.

Fair Housing Office means the city office designated by the city manager to take
complaints in violation of this Division and to assist in conciliation.

Familial status means the status of a person resulting from being:
(1) pregnant;

(2) domiciled with an individual younger than 18 years of age in regard to whom
the person:

(A) is the parent or legal guardian; or,

(B) has the written permission of the parent or legal guardian for domicile
with the individual; or,

10



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

)
(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(@

(3) in the process of securing legal custody of an individual who is younger than
18 years of age.

Family includes a single individual.

Major life activities means functions such as, but not limited to, caring for oneself,
performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning
and working.

Person means one or more individuals, corporations, partnerships, associations,
labor organizations, legal representatives, mutual companies, joint-stock companies,
trusts, unincorporated organizations, trustees, trustees in cases under Title 11 of the

United States Code, receivers, and fiduciaries.

Residence does not include a hotel, motel, or similar public accommodation where
occupancy is available exclusively on a temporary, day-to-day basis.

Respondent means:

(1) The person accused of a violation of this Division in a complaint of a
discriminatory housing practice; and

(2) Any person identified as an additional or substitute respondent.

To rent includes to lease, sublease, to let, or to otherwise grant for a consideration
the right to occupy premises not owned by the occupant.

Subdivision III - Prohibitions against Discrimination

Sec. 2-625. - Sale or rental.

(a)

(b)

A person may not refuse to sell or rent a dwelling to a person who has made a bona
fide offer; refuse to negotiate for the sale or rental of a dwelling; or otherwise make
unavailable or deny a dwelling to any person because of race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status, national
origin or age.

A person may not discriminate against any person in the terms, conditions, or
privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling or in providing services or facilities in
connection with the sale or rental, because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status, national origin
or age.

11



LOH
09/05/13
Itern #4

Sec. 2-626. — False Representation; Inspection.

A person may not represent to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status, national origin or age
that a dwelling is not available for inspection, sale, or rental when the dwelling is in fact so
available.

Sec. 2-627. - Entry into neighborhood.

A person may not, for profit, induce or attempt to induce a person to sell or rent a
dwelling by representations regarding the entry or prospective entry into a neighborhood of a
person of a particular race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran
status, disability, familial status, national origin or age.

Sec. 2-628. - Disability.

(a) A person may not discriminate in the sale or rental or otherwise make unavailable
or deny a dwelling to a buyer or renter because of a disability of:

(1) That buyer or renter;

(2) A person residing in or intending to reside in that dwelling after it is sold,
rented, or made available; or

(3) Any person associated with that buyer or renter.

(b) A person may not discriminate against any person in the terms, conditions, or
privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling or in the provision of services or facilities
in connection with the dwelling because of a disability of:

(1) That person;

(2) A person residing in or intending to reside in that dwelling after it is sold,
rented, or made available; or

(3) Any person associated with that person.
(¢) For purposes of this Section only, discrimination includes:

(1) A refusal to permit, at the expense of the disabled person, reasonable
modifications of existing premises occupied or to be occupied by such person
if such modifications may be necessary to afford such person full enjoyment
of the premises, except that, in the case of a rental, the landlord may where it
is reasonable to do so condition permission for a modification on the renter
agreeing to restore the interior of the premises to the condition that existed
before the modification, reasonable wear and tear excepted.

12



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

(2) A refusal to make reasonable accommodations in rules, policies, practices, or
services, when the accommodations may be necessary to afford a disabled
person equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling, including public and
common use areas.

(3) In connection with the design and construction of covered multifamily
dwellings for first occupancy after March 13, 1991, a failure to design and
construct those dwellings in a manner that:

(A) The public use and common use portions of such dwellings are readily
accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities;

(B) All the doors designed to allow passage into and within all premises
within such dwellings are sufficiently wide to allow passage by persons

in wheelchairs; and

(C) All premises within such dwellings contain the following features of
adaptive design:

(1)  An accessible route into and through the dwelling;

(11) Light switches, electrical outlets, thermostats, and other
environmental controls in accessible locations;

(ii1) Reinforcements in bathroom walls to allow later installation of
grab bars; and,

(iv) Usable kitchens and bathrooms such that an individual in a
wheelchair can maneuver about the space.

(d) Compliance with the appropriate requirements of the American National Standard

(e)

®

Institute for buildings and facilities providing accessibility and usability for persons
with physical disabilities, commonly cited as "ANSI A 117.1," suffices to satisfy
the requirements of Subsection (¢)(3)(C) of this Section.

As used in this Subsection, the term "covered multi-family dwellings" means:

(1) Buildings consisting of four (4) or more units if the buildings have one or
more elevators; and

(2) Ground floor units in other buildings consisting of four (4) or more units.

Nothing in this Subsection requires that a dwelling be made available to an
individual whose tenancy would constitute a direct threat to the health or safety of
other individuals or whose tenancy would result in substantial physical damage to
the property of others.



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

Sec. 2-629. - Publication.

A person may not make, print, or publish or cause to be made, printed, or published any
notice, statement, or advertisement with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling that
indicates any preference, limitation, or discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, or familial status, national origin
or age, or an intention to make such a preference, limitation, or discrimination.

Sec. 2-630. - Residential real estate related transaction.

(a) A person whose business includes engaging in residential real estate related
transactions may not discriminate against a person in making a real estate related
transaction available or in the terms or conditions of a real estate related transaction
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran
status, disability, familial status, national origin or age.

(b) In this Section, "residential real estate related transaction" means:
(1) Making or purchasing loans or providing other financial assistance,
(A) To purchase, construct, improve, repair, or maintain a dwelling; or
(B) Secured by residential real estate; or
(2) Selling, brokering, or appraising residential real property.
Sec. 2-631. - Brokerage services.

A person may not deny any person access to, or membership or participation in, a
multiple-listing service, real estate brokers' organization or other service, organization, or
facility relating to the business of selling or renting dwellings, or discriminate against a
person in the terms or conditions of access, membership, or participation in such an
organization, service, or facility because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status, national origin or age.

Sec. 2-632. - Interference with exercise of rights unlawful.

It shall be unlawful to coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any person in the
exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his/her having exercised or enjoyed, or on account
of his/her having aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any

right granted or protected by this Division, including the giving of testimony or provision of
information in aid of investigation or discovery under this Division.

14



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

Sec. 2-633. — Consideration of non-discriminatory factors.
Nothing in this Division prohibits:

(a) Consideration of a person’s conviction under federal law or the law of any state for
the illegal manufacture or distribution of a controlled substance.

(b) A person engaged in the business of furnishing appraisals of real property from
taking into consideration factors other than race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status, national origin
or age.

Subdivision I'V - Exemptions.
Sec. 2-634. - Sales and Rentals Exempted.

(a) Subject to Subsection (b) of this Section, Sections 2-625 through 2-628 of this
Division do not apply to:

(1) The sale or rental of a single-family house sold or rented by an owner if:
(A) The owner does not:
(1) Own more than three (3) single-family houses at any one time; and

(i) Own any interest in, nor is there owned or reserved on his behalf,
under any express or voluntary agreement, title to or any right to any
part of the proceeds from the sale or rental of more than three (3)
single-family houses at any one time; and

(B) The house is, or was sold or rented without:

(i) The use of the sales or rental facilities or services of a real estate
broker, agent, or salesman licensed under applicable state law or of
an employee or agent of a licensed broker, agent, or salesman, or the
facilities or services of the owner of a dwelling designed or intended
for occupancy by five or more families; and

(i1) The publication, posting, or mailing of a notice, statement or
advertisement prohibited by Section 2-629 of this Division; or

(2) The sale or rental of rooms or units in a dwelling containing living quarters
occupied or intended to be occupied by no more than four (4) families living
independently of each other if the owner maintains and occupies one of the
living quarters as the owner's residence.

15



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

(b)

The exemption set forth in (a)(1) of this Section applies only to one sale or rental
within a 24-month period if the owner did not reside in the house at the time of sale
or rental or was not the most recent resident of the house prior to the sale or rental.

Sec. 2-635. - Religious Organizations and Private Clubs Exempted.

(a)

(b)

This Division does not prohibit a religious organization, association, or society, or a
nonprofit institution or organization operated, supervised, or controlled by or in
conjunction with a religious organization, association, or society, from:

(D

2

Limiting the sale, rental, or occupy dwellings that it owns or operates for other
than a commercial purpose to persons of the same religion; or

Giving preference for such dwellings to persons of the same religion, unless
membership in the religion is restricted because of race, color or national
origin.

This Division does not prohibit a private club not in fact open to the public that, as
an incident to its primary purpose, provides lodging that it owns or operates for
other than a commercial purpose from limiting the rental or occupancy of that
lodging to its members or from giving preference to its members.

Sec. 2-636. - Housing for Elderly Exempted.

(a)

(b)

The provisions of this Division relating to familial status do not apply to housing
for older persons.

In this Section “housing for older persons’ means housing:

(1)

)

3)

That the Secretary of the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development determines is specifically designed and operated to assist elderly
persons under a federal or state program;

Intended for, and solely occupied by, persons sixty-two (62) years of age or
older; or

Intended and operated for occupancy by at least one (1) person fifty-five (55)
years of age or older per unit as determined by the Secretary of the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development. To the extent that
such a determination falls within the jurisdiction of the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development, the following factors at
minimum must be present for the dwelling(s) to qualify for the exemption:

(A) The existence of significant facilities and services specifically designed

to meet the physical or social needs of older persons, or if the provision
of such facilities and services is not practicable, that such housing is

16



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

necessary to provide important housing opportunities for older persons;
and,

(B) That at least eighty (80) percent of the units are occupied by at least one
(1) person fifty-five (55) years of age or older per unit; and,

(C) The publication of, and adherence to policies and procedures which
demonstrate an intent by the owner or manager to provide housing for
persons fifty-five (55) years of age or older.

Sec. 2-637. - Appraisal Exemption.

This Division does not prohibit a person engaged in the business of furnishing appraisals
of residential real property from taking into consideration factors other than race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, disability, familial status,
national origin or age.

Sec. 2-638. - Effect on other law.

This Section and Division do not affect a requirement of nondiscrimination in any other
local, state or federal law.

Subdivision V — Enforcement

Sec. 2-639. - Complaints.

The Fair Housing Office shall upon receipt of a written complaint under oath, made by an
aggrieved person charging a violation of any provision of the prohibitive sections of this
Division, make a prompt and full investigation of the complaint. If after such investigation,
the Fair Housing Office determines that a violation has occurred it shall attempt to eliminate
the discriminatory housing practices by conciliation and persuasion. If the Fair Housing
Office fails in the conciliation proceedings, it shall forward all papers, including the written
complaint, investigation, record of conciliation proceedings, factual findings and its
recommendation to the city attorney and/or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development for further prosecution. The complaint, investigation and conciliation
proceedings shall be confidential records and proceedings of the Fair Housing Office shall
not be made public except upon the authority of the city council. The city attorney shall
review the proceedings and shall take appropriate legal action if it is deemed appropriate.

(a) In any proceeding brought pursuant to this Section, the burden of proof shall be on
the complainant;

(b) A complaint provided for in this Division shall be filed within thirty (30) days after
the alleged discriminatory housing practice occurred. Complaints shall state the

17



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

facts upon which the allegations of a discriminatory housing practice are based.
Complaints may be reasonably and fairly amended at any time. A respondent may
file an answer to the complaint against him and with the leave of the Fair Housing
Office, which shall be granted whenever it would be reasonable and fair to do so,
may amend his answer at any time. Both complaints and answers shall be signed.

D1vISION 7. TITLE VI COMPLIANCE.
Sec. 2-640. — Policy.

It is the policy of the City of San Antonio, Texas as a recipient of Federal financial
assistance and under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and related statutes, to
ensure that no person shall on the grounds of race, religion (where the primary objective
of the financial assistance is to provide employment per 42 U.S.C. Section 2000d-3),
color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, age, or
disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be
subjected to discrimination or retaliation under any federally or non-federally funded city
programs or activities administered by the city or its contractors.

Sec. 2-641. — Complaint Procedures.

The complaint procedures for Title VI transportation related programs, projects or
activities known as Methods of Administration (MOA) can be found on the City of San
Antonio’s website.

SECTION 2. Chapter 2, Administration, Article V. Equal Opportunity and Employee
Relations, Division 1. Generally, Division 2. Office of Employee Relations, and Division 3.
Affirmative Action, of the City Code of San Antonio, Texas, are hereby amended as provided in
SECTION 1 of this Ordinance, and codified as Divisions 2 through 4 in Article X. Non-
Discrimination Policies of Chapter 2.

The balance of the text in Chapter 2, Administration, Article 1V. Equal Opportunity and
Employee Relations, Division 2. Office of Employee Relations, of the City Code of San Antonio,
Texas, shall remain and be reformatted and renumbered to conform to the existing Code, except
for the following language which shall be amended by adding language that is underlined
(added) and deleting language that is stricken (deleted), to read as follows:

DIVISION 3. OFFICE OF EMPLOYEE RELATIONS, LABOR RELATIONS DIVISION

Sec. 2-124 -Functions.

The office of employee relations, under the direction of the director of employee
relations, will be established within the office of the city manager and will be responsible

for the following functions as-speeified-by-division:

18



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

SECTION 3. Sections 9-36 through 9-53 of Ordinance No. 2009-05-14-0385 and Section 9-46
of Chapter 9, Community Relations, Article 11, Discriminatory Housing Practices of the City
Code are consolidated and adopted in their amended form as set forth in SECTION 1 of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 4. All sections of Chapter 9, Community Relations, Article 1I, Places of Public
Accommodation, of the City Code are hereby amended and codified as provided in Section 1 of
this Ordinance which shall, with the actions adopted in SECTION 3 of this Ordinance, reserve
all of Chapter 9 for future legislation.

SECTION 5. Chapter 2, Article I, Section 2-9 is hereby amended and codified as Chapter 2,
Administration, Article X, Non-Discrimination Policies, Section 2-552 as indicated in SECTION
1 of this Ordinance.

SECTION 6. City Council also amends Chapter 2, Article IX, Boards and Commissions Rules,
Sec. 2-529(c) of the City Code to conform to the general policy established by this Ordinance as
follows:

Sec. 2-529. - Membership.

(¢) When making appointments to boards and commissions, the city shall not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, veteran status, age or disability.

SECTION 7. All City of San Antonio contracts, exclusive of (i) the contracts exempted from
the scope and application of SBEDA Ordinance No. 2010-06-17-0531; (ii) contracts for the
city’s sale of real property, and documents incidental thereto; and (iii) agreements with
governmental entities, shall contain the following:

Non-Discrimination. As a party to this contract, [Contractor or Vendor]
understands and agrees to comply with the Non-Discrimination Policy of the City of
San Antonio contained in Chapter 2, Article X of the City Code and further, shall
not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, veteran status, age or disability, unless exempted by
state or federal law, or as otherwise established herein.

The above contract clause shall be in addition to the Commercial Non-Discrimination Policy
language that is added to all contracts governed by the SBEDA Ordinance No. 2010-06-17-0531,
if applicable.

SECTION 8. This Ordinance shall control over any prior ordinance provisions or policies in
conflict herewith. Ordinance No. 80613 is repealed.

19



LOH
09/05/13
Item #4

SECTION 9. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this Ordinance or
Chapter 2, Administration, Article X., Non-Discrimination Policies, or the application thereof, to
any person or circumstance is for any reason held by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be
unconstitutional, inoperative, invalid or void, such holding shall not affect the remainder of this
Article or the application of any other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect
without the invalid provision or application, and to this end, all the provisions of this Ordinance
are hereby declared to be severable.

SECTION 10. Discriminatory practices in the provision of public accommodations and housing
shall be a Class C misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punishable in accordance with
Chapter 1, Section 1-5 of the City Code. The penalties contained herein are non-exclusive and
the city shall have any and all remedies to which it may be entitled in law or in equity. The
exercise of any penalty or remedy by the city shall not be deemed as a waiver of any other
remedy to which the city may be entitled.

Prior to filing a case for discriminatory practices in the provision of public accommodations and
housing, the city may attempt to eliminate the discriminatory practice by pretrial diversion or
conciliation.

SECTION 11. The Office of the City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the penalties
prescribed by this Ordinance in a publication of general circulation and to update the City Code
in accordance with this Ordinance.

SECTION 12. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon receipt of eight affirmative
votes or otherwise ten days after passage by City Council.

SECTION 13. The penalties provided for in Chapter 2, Administration, Article X, Non-
Discrimination Policies shall be effective five days after publication by the Office of the City
Clerk.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 5 day of September, 2013.

A O R
Julian Castro

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

icta M. Vaa&, City C)érk Michael D. Bernard, City Attorney

20



Attachment D

City of San Antonio Relocation Policy
&
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Handbook 1378



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO

Relocation Policies & Procedures

Revised: August, 2008

SECTION 1: RELOCATION GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. POLICY

(1).

2).

The City of San Antonio hereby establishes the policy and internal
procedures to determine eligibility requirements for relocation assistance
and the amount of relocation assistance a Displaced Person receives and
the procedures for implementation of the policy. The programs and
policies of the City of San Antonio for federally assisted projects and
programs shall be consistent with the requirements of the Uniform
Relocation Act. The City Manager is, subject to appropriations and the
adopted budget, authorized fo take such further actions as may be
necessary to implement this Policy.

Interpretations of the policies and procedures adopted pursuant to this
Policy shall be consistent with interpretations of the Uniform Relocation
Act rendered by federal and state courts with appropriate jurisdiction. City
staff may consult opinions of the Texas Attorney General and the policies
and procedures of the Texas Highway Department for additional guidance.

B. PURPOSE

Relocation assistance is provided pursuant to statutory and regulatory requirements
outlined in HUD Handbook 1378 for persons displaced in conjunction with real property
acquisitions and projects or programs for which federal financial assistance is provided.

C. SCOPE

These policies and procedures apply to all federally-assisted projects involving eminent
domain, official orders to vacate, and rehabilitation and demolition for projects. Projects
funded through state or local funds shall be governed by the Texas Local Government
Code and separate regulations.

D. REGULATORY AUTHORITY

(1).
(2).
(3)-
(4).

(5).

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act
(Public Law 91-646) [the” URA"] and amendments thereto,

Section 104-d of the Community Development Act [“Section 104”"] and
amendments thereto,

49 CFR Part 24 §§24.1-24.603, and amendments thereto),

the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, including but not limited
to, Chapter 21, Texas Property Code and Chapter 201, Texas Local
Government Code.

the Charter and ordinances of the City Code of the City of San Antonio.



E. DEFINITIONS

The City of San Antonio hereby adopts the following definitions. In the event of a conflict
between a definition set out in this Subsection E and a definition for the same word or
phrase that is now or hereafter adopted by a federal agency with authority over one or
more federal programs, then the following definitions shall be adapted as necessary to
conform to the federally adopted definition for programs funded by or through the
relevant federal agency without further action of Council.

(1).  Agency - the entity that causes a person to become a Displaced Person or
acquires real property. Such entity may be a State agency. This term
includes a local government, or a person (includes nonprofit organization,
partnership, corporation or association).

(2). Business - any lawful activity, except a farm operation, conducted
primarily for:

(a). the purchase, sale, lease and rental of personal and real property,
or for the manufacture, processing, or marketing of products,
commodities or any other personal property;

(b). the sale of services to the public;

(c). by a nonprofit organization; or

(d). for assisting in the purchase, sale, resale, manufacture, processing
or marketing or products, commodities, personal property, or
services by the erection and maintenance of an outdoor advertising
display or displays, whether or not such display or displays are
located on the premises on which any of the above activities are
conducted.

(3). CIMS is the Capital Improvements Management Services department of
the City of San Antonio. In the event the CIMS department ceases to exist
or the relocation duties encompassed by this Policy shall be transferred to
or assumed by another department of the City of San Antonio (“the
Successor Department”), then any reference in this Policy to “CIMS” shall
reference the Successor Department.

(4)  Comparable replacement dwelling is one which is:

(a). decent, safe and sanitary;

(b). functionally equivalent and substantially the same as the
displacement dwelling with respect to area of living space, type of
construction, age and state of repair;

(c). housing open to all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, and the protected classes, to include familial status
and handicapped persons, and is consistent with Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968 and Chapter 9, Article lll, Discriminatory
Housing Practices of the City Code of the City of San Antonio;

(d). located in an area not generally less desirable than the
displacement area with regard to public utilities and public and
commercial facilities;

(e). reasonably accessible to the Displaced Person’s place of
employment;

(.  adequate to accommodate the Displaced Person; and

URA Relocation Policy and Procedures
Page 2



(5).

(6).

(7).

(8).

(9)

(10).

(11).

(g)  within the financial means of the Displaced Person(s).

Displaced Person (Federally-assisted projects) - any person that moves

from real property, or moves his or her personal property from the real

property, permanently, as a direct result of:

(a). the acquisition of, or written notice of intent to acquire, or initiation
of negotiations to acquire; or

(b). the rehabilitation or demolition of such real property for a project; or

(c). the rehabilitation, demolition, acquisition of all or a part of other real
property on which the person conducts a business or farm
operation, for a project.

Displaced person (City funded Projects) - any person who moves or
discontinues his business, or moves other personal property permanently
and involuntarily as a direct result of City funded real property acquisition
for public use.
Displaced person (Non-Residential) - any person who moves or
discontinues his business, or moves other personal property, or moves
from his dwelling as a direct result of any City of San Antonio code
enforcement project not involving real property acquisition, shall be
deemed to have been displaced as the result of the acquisition of real
property.

Existing patronage - the annual average dollar volume of business

transacted during the two taxable years immediately preceding the taxable

year in which the business is relocated.

Farm operation - any activity conducted solely or primarily for the

production of one or more agricultural products or commodities, including

timber, for sale or home use and customarily producing such products or
commodities in sufficient quantity to be capable of contributing materially
to the operator's support.

Federal financial assistance - a grant, loan, or contribution provided by the

federal government.

Initiation of negotiation - serves as a milestone in determining a person’s

eligibility for relocation assistance for federally-assisted projects.

(a). Acquisition by the City of San Antonio-initiation of negotiation
means the delivery of the initial written offer of just compensation to
the owner to purchase the real property for the project.

(b).  Acquisition by the City of San Antonio through an arm’s length
transaction - initiation of negotiation is the execution of the contract
binding the seller and the purchaser to the conveyance.

(c). Whenever displacement occurs as a direct result of privately
undertaken acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition, the initiation of
negotiation is the execution of the loan or grant agreement.

(d). Whenever displacement occurs as a direct result of demolition or
rehabilitation undertaken by the City of San Antonio or at its
direction and there is no related acquisition, the initiation of
negotiation is the execution of the agreement between by the City
of San Antonio and the rehabilitation or demolition contractor.

(e). Initiation of negotiations for City of San Antonio code enforcement
activities, means the date an official order to vacate is personally

URA Relocation Policy and Procedures

Page 3



(12).

(13).

(14).
(15).
(16).

(17).

issued by the Dangerous Structures Board, the fire marshal, the
building official, or the city health officer.

Nonprofit_organization - a corporation, partnership, individual or other

public or private entity, engaged in a business, professional or

instructional activity on a nonprofit basis.

Owner - an individual (or individuals):

(a). owning, legally or equitably, the fee simple estate, a life estate, a 99
year lease or other proprietary interest in the property; or

(b). the contract purchaser of any of the foregoing estates or interests;
or

(c). who has succeeded to any of the foregoing interests by devise,
bequest, inheritance or operation of law.

Person - any individual, partnership, corporation or association.

Relocatee - any person who meets the definition of a Displaced Person.

Tenant - a person who has the temporary use and occupancy of real

property with the knowledge and consent of the property owner.

Other definitions and additional details are found at §24.2 of 49 CFR Part

24 and the guidance found at Appendix A, 49 CFR Part 24.

F. RESPONSIBILITIES

(1).

(2).

(3).

The Capital Improvement Management Services (CIMS) Department shall
serve as the primary City entity in implementing these policies. The
Director, through the Real Estate Manager, is responsible for providing
instructional and operations manuals, explanation of materials, training
seminars and other appropriate means in a manner sufficient to
demonstrate compliance with local, state and federal requirements
addressed in this handbook. In the event the general duties of the CIMS
Department are transferred to or combined with another City department,
then this responsibility shall also be transferred to or combined with the
other City department.

The CIMS Real Estate Manager is responsible for ensuring that City’s
relocation activities, notwithstanding any third-party contractual
obligations, are in compliance with all federal, state and local relocation
laws and regulations. The CIMS Real Estate Manager is also responsible
for ensuring that records are maintained in detail sufficient to demonstrate
compliance with the provisions of this handbook, and other local, state and
federal relocation laws and regulations.

The CIMS Real Estate Specialists, under the direction of the CIMS Real
Estate Manager, are responsible for implementing these policies and
procedures, maintaining records in detail sufficient to demonstrate
compliance with the provisions of this handbook, local, state and federal
relocation laws and for issuing appropriate notices to, and contacts with,
Displaced Persons.

G. PROCEDURES

(1). The procedures for providing relocation assistance in accordance with

URA Relocation Policy and Procedures

Page 4



appropriate laws and regulations are listed under specific subject matter.
(2.). The CIMS Director shall develop forms and additional procedures necessary
to implement this policy and the City of San Antonio’s Relocation Program.

H. ADDITIONAL GUIDANCE AND PROCEDURES

(1) 1378.0 Tenant Assistance, Relocation and Real Property Acquisition
Handbook issued by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development is
hereby adopted to provide additional guidance and assistance in supplementing
or interpreting these procedures. Three copies of the current manual have been
placed in the files of the City Clerk and may be inspected during normal business
hours. At the time of the adoption of this Handbook by the City of San Antonio,
the US Department of Housing and Urban Development has also make its
handbook available on the World Wide Web at
http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/library/relocation/policyandguidance/handbook13
78.cfm. This reference to the World Wide Web posting of the handbook is for
convenience only. The failure of the US Department of Housing and Urban
Development to maintain the posting or to continue the posting on the World
Wide Web shall have no effect whatsoever on the validity of this Handbook.

(2) The Right of Way Manual Vol. 3--Relocation Assistance published by the
Texas Department of Transportation is hereby adopted to provide additional
guidance and assistance in supplementing or interpreting these procedures.
Three copies of the current manual have been placed in the files of the City Clerk
and may be inspected during normal business hours. At the time of the adoption
of this Handbook, The Texas Department of Transportation has also made its
manual available on the World Wide Web at fip:/ftp.dot. state.tx.us/pub/txdot-
info/gsd/manuals/rel.pdf. This reference to the World Wide Web posting of the
manual is for convenience only. The failure of the Texas Department of
Transportation to maintain the posting or to continue the posting on the World
Wide Web shall have no effect whatsoever on the validity of this Handbook.

URA Relocation Policy and Procedures
Page 5



TCI-C

Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Action Item b
January 8, 2026

Subject: Resolution No. TCFC-2026-01, To Direct Staff to explore ways to enhance tenant
protections, ensure housing stability, and prevent evictions.

Background Information:

In October 2025, the University of Texas School at Austin | School of Law | Housing Policy
Clinic published a report entitled “Strengthening Public Benefits in Tax-Exempt Private
Partnership (TEPP) Properties.” As per its authors, the reportis intended to “highlight critical
gaps in policy and oversight and offer recommendations to address these shortcomings
through reforms that ensure the TEPP tool is a sustainable and impactful part of local
affordable housing strategies.”

Key recommendations include:
= Establish astrong public benefitthreshold; ensure rents are truly affordable; regulate
junk fees; remove access barriers for Voucher holders and low-income renters;
adopt strong eviction mitigation policies.

The report further goes on to suggest that the policies and actions of government and public
corporations involved in this work in Travis County fail to provide the meaningful public
benefits and the strongest possible outcomes for renters and communities for which they
are expected to provide.

Staffis being asked to provide options to the Board for consideration that will strengthen the
organization’s effort related to tenants' rights and protections. These options should, at
some level, address components such as fee transparency and caps; right to Cure; anti-
retaliation; Tenant Education; and Eviction Prevention.

Recommended Action:

Consideration and take possible action regarding Resolution No. TCFC-2026-01, To Direct
Staff to explore ways to enhance tenant protections, ensure housing stability, and prevent
evictions.

Alternate Option:
The Board of Commissioners could elect to NOT direct staff to explore enhanced tenant
protections options.

Fiscal Impact:
TBD

January 8, 2026



TCI-C

Travis County Facilities Corporation

Attachments:
A. San Antonio Housing Trust Resident/Tenant Protection Policy

B. Harris County Tenant Protection Policy Guidelines

Prepared and Approved:

Patrick B. Howard, CEO/Executive Director

January 8, 2026



V. DISCUSSION ITEMS

= Election of Officers (President and Vice
President)




VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION




VII. ADJOURNMENT




	1a_Project_Name__Address_including_City_County_Sta: 
	lb_Project_Contract_Number: 
	1c_No_of_Units: 
	1_d_Census_Tract: 
	1e_HousingExpanded_Housing_Market_Area: Housing Market Area:
Expanded Housing Market Area:
	1f_ManagingAgent_Name_Address_includin: 
	1g_ApplicationOwnerDeveloper_Name_Address_includin: 
	1h_owner: Off
	1h_agent: Off
	1h_other: Off
	1h_OtherText: 
	1h_Entity_Responsible_for_Marketing_check_all_that: 
	1i_To_whom_should_approval_and_other_correspondenc: 
	ComboBox2: [Please Select Plan Type]
	2a_Date: 
	2a_Affirmative_Fair_Housing_Marketing_Plan: 
	a-Elderly: Off
	2a-Family: Off
	2a-mixedCheckBox29: Off
	2a-disabled: Off
	2c_Date_of_Initial_Occupancy: 
	Prior_to_Initial_Occupancy: 
	CheckBox27: Off
	which_currently_has: 
	CheckBox28: Off
	which_currently_has0: 
	CheckBox19: Off
	CheckBox18: Off
	CheckBox23: Off
	CheckBox24: Off
	CheckBox21: Off
	CheckBox22: Off
	CheckBox26: Off
	CheckBox20: Off
	CheckBox25: Off
	Other_ethnic_group_religion_etc_specify: 
	ComboBox12: [Please Select Yes or No]
	ComboBox1: [Please Select Type]
	ComboBox13: [Please Select Yes or No]
	ComboBox14: [Please Select Yes or No]
	4A: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	CheckBox1: Off
	CheckBox2: Off
	CheckBox3: Off
	CheckBox4: Off
	Text5: 
	CheckBox5: Off
	CheckBox6: Off
	CheckBox7: Off
	CheckBox8: Off
	5c_Project_Site_Sign: 
	CheckBox9: Off
	CheckBox10: Off
	CheckBox11: Off
	CheckBox12: Off
	CheckBox13: Off
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text6: 
	Text11: 
	7A: 
	7b1: [Please Select Yes or No]
	7b2: [Please Select Yes or No]
	7B3: 
	7b4: [Please Select Yes or No]
	7B5: 
	7C1: [Please Select Yes or No]
	7c_Tenant_Selection_TrainingStaff: 
	7d_Staff_InstructionlTraining: 
	Review_and_Update: 
	Name_type_or_print: 
	Title__Name_of_Company: 
	CheckBox14: Off
	CheckBox15: Off
	Name: 
	Title: 
	Name2: 
	Title2: 
	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text25: 
	Text26: 
	Text27: 
	Text28: 
	Text29: 
	Text30: 
	Text31: 
	Text32: 
	Text33: 
	Text34: 
	Text35: 
	Text36: 
	Text37: 
	Text38: 
	Text39: 
	Text40: 
	Text41: 
	Text42: 
	Text43: 
	Text44: 
	Text45: 
	Text46: 
	Text47: 
	Text48: 
	Text49: 
	Text50: 
	Text51: 
	Text52: 
	White: 
	White0: 
	White1: 
	White2: 
	White3: 
	White4: 
	American_Indian_orAlaskan_Native: 
	American_Indian_orAlaskan_Native0: 
	American_Indian_orAlaskan_Native1: 
	American_Indian_orAlaskan_Native2: 
	American_Indian_orAlaskan_Native3: 
	American_Indian_orAlaskan_Native4: 
	Asian: 
	Asian0: 
	Asian1: 
	Asian2: 
	Asian3: 
	Asian4: 
	Black_or_African_American: 
	Black_or_African_American0: 
	Black_or_African_American1: 
	Black_or_African_American2: 
	Black_or_African_American3: 
	Black_or_African_American4: 
	Native_Hawaiian_or_Other_Pacific_Islander: 
	Native_Hawaiian_or_Other_Pacific_Islander0: 
	Native_Hawaiian_or_Other_Pacific_Islander1: 
	Native_Hawaiian_or_Other_Pacific_Islander2: 
	Native_Hawaiian_or_Other_Pacific_Islander3: 
	Native_Hawaiian_or_Other_Pacific_Islander4: 
	Hispanic_or_Latino: 
	Hispanic_or_Latino0: 
	Hispanic_or_Latino1: 
	Hispanic_or_Latino2: 
	Hispanic_or_Latino3: 
	Hispanic_or_Latino4: 
	Persons_with_Disabilities: 
	Persons_with_Disabilities0: 
	Persons_with_Disabilities1: 
	Persons_with_Disabilities2: 
	Persons_with_Disabilities3: 
	Persons_with_Disabilities4: 
	Families_with_Children: 
	Families_with_Children0: 
	Families_with_Children1: 
	Families_with_Children2: 
	Families_with_Children3: 
	Families_with_Children4: 
	Other: 
	Other_specify: 
	Other_specify0: 
	Other_specify1: 
	Other_specify2: 
	Other_specify3: 
	Other_specify4: 
	Textfield8: 
	Textfield: 
	Textfield0: 
	Textfield1: 
	Textfield2: 
	Textfield3: 
	Textfield4: 
	Textfield5: 
	Textfield6: 
	Textfield7: 
	Newspapers: 
	Targeted_Population: 
	Targeted_Population0: 
	Targeted_Population1: 
	Radio_Stations: 
	Targeted_Population2: 
	Targeted_Population3: 
	Targeted_Population4: 
	TV_Stations: 
	Targeted_Population5: 
	Targeted_Population6: 
	Targeted_Population7: 
	Electronic_Media: 
	Targeted_Population8: 
	Targeted_Population9: 
	Targeted_Population10: 
	Bulletin_Boards: 
	Targeted_Population11: 
	Targeted_Population12: 
	Targeted_Population13: 
	Brochures: 
	Targeted_Population14: 
	Targeted_Population15: 
	Targeted_Population16: 
	Other2: 
	Targeted_Population17: 
	Targeted_Population18: 
	Targeted_Population19: 


